
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 

 
Council members will meet and hold a Workshop on Monday, February 10, 2020, at 5:00 
p.m. to review the bills against the City. The Workshop will be held in the Council Chambers 
located at 5525 B Street, Bay City, Oregon.  
 
The public is welcome to attend.  
 
Linda Downey  
City Recorder  
 
 
 

                                                  CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP  
 
The Bay City Council will hold a Workshop on Monday, February 10, 2020, at 5:30 p.m. to 
discuss the agenda items for the Tuesday, February 11, 2020, City Council meeting. The 
Workshop will be held in the Council Chambers located at 5525 B Street, Bay City, Oregon.  
 
The public is welcome to attend.  
 
Linda Downey  
City Recorder  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In accordance with Federal Law and US Department of Agriculture policy, this institution is prohibited from discriminating on 

the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability.  

 City of Bay City 

 

PO Box 3309 
Bay City, Oregon  97107 

Phone (503)377-2288 
Fax (503)377-4044 

TDD 7-1-1 
www.ci.bay-city.or.us 



 

AGENDA 

BAY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

FEBRUARY 11, 2020 

1. CALL TO ORDER / FLAG SALUTE / ROLL CALL / WELCOME – 6.00 P.M 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Ordinance No. 690 Citations 

B. Ordinance No. 691 Nuisances 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  

                  A. Jody Daily  

 

4.  DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

  A. Police 

                  B. Fire 

               C. City Manager    

               D. Public Works 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS 

               A. Administrative Committee  

               B. Community Development 

                             a.   Business Licenses 

 C. Emergency Management          

 D. Fire Committee 

6. MINUTES  

11/11/2019 Council Workshop, 11/12/2019 Council Meeting (Amended), 12/09/2019 

Council Workshop, 12/10/2019 Regular Council Meeting and 12/23/2019 Special Council. 

7. TREASURER’S REPORT 

8. BILLS AGAINST THE CITY 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Reader Board /Fire Station 

B. Bay City Water System 

C. Council Vacancy 

D. John Gettman Award 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Resolution 20-06 Budget Appropriations 

B. Resolution 20-07 Unanticipated Revenue & Budget Appropriations 

C. Transient Lodging Advisory Committee Recommendations 

D. Transient Lodging Advisory Committee Appointment     

11. MAYOR’S PRESENTATION 

                    A. Regular Monthly Workshop Schedule       

                    B. Mayor’s Charter May 2020 Ballot Proposal            

 

12. CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION 

 

13. ATTORNEY PRESENTATION  

   

14. AJOURNMENT 



Page 1 City of Bay City Ordinance _____ - Prescribing civil infractions, penalties, and enforcement 

ORDINANCE NO. 690 

AN ORDINANCE PRESCRIBING CIVIL INFRACTIONS; 
PROVIDING PENALTIES AND ENFORCEMENT; 

REPEALING CITY ORDINANCE #348 

THE CITY OF BAY CITY ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Repeal. Bay City Ordinance #348, adopted January 22, 1976, is hereby repealed 

in its entirety. 

 

SECTION 2: Purpose. 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to establish a civil infraction procedure for enforcement of 

City Ordinances. The City may use the civil infraction procedure for any infraction. The 

civil infraction procedure is not a criminal procedure. The civil infraction procedure is not 

exclusive, and the City may use any other procedure for enforcement authorized by law. 

The civil infraction procedure may be used in conjunction with other enforcement actions or 
procedures. 

SECTION 3: Definitions. 

The following definitions apply in this Ordinance: 

 

A. Code Enforcement Officer means the Public Works Director, the Fire Department 

Chief, the Building Inspector, the City Manager, and all other persons designated by the 

City Manager to serve as Code Enforcement Officers. 

 

B. Civil Penalty means the monetary payment imposed for violation of a City 

ordinance.  

 

C. Infraction means an action or failure to act in violation of any City ordinance, or 

any order, permit, license, approval, or condition of any type authorized by City ordinance. 

 

D. Responsible Party means the person responsible for curing or remedying an infraction. 

"Responsible Party" includes: 

1. The person alleged to have committed or authorized the infraction; and/or 

2. If an infraction involves a condition of or on real property, the property owner, 

any agent of the property owner, and any person occupying or having possession 

of the property. 

 

E. Respondent means the person to whom a citation or summons is issued. 

F. Municipal Court means Justice of the Peace Court of Tillamook County. 

SECTION 4: No Mental State Required. 



Page 2 City of Bay City Ordinance _____ - Prescribing civil infractions, penalties, and enforcement 

A culpable mental state is not required to establish an infraction unless a culpable mental 

state is required under the code provision, ordinance, or other requirement alleged to have 

been violated. 

SECTION 5: Civil Infraction Pre-Citation Procedures. 

A. Reporting. All reports or complaints of infractions shall be referred to the appropriate 

Code Enforcement Officer. 

B. Review of Facts. The appropriate Code Enforcement Officer may investigate the facts 

and circumstances surrounding any infraction reported or otherwise made known to the Code 

Enforcement Officer. 

C. Prior Contact. Before a civil infraction citation is issued, the Code Enforcement 

Officer may contact a Responsible Party and may give the Responsible Party a reasonable 

opportunity to cure or remedy the alleged infraction. Contact prior to issuance of a citation 

is solely within the discretion of the Code Enforcement Officer. If prior contact is made, 

the Code Enforcement Officer shall provide the following information to the Responsible 
Party: 

1. Description of the activity constituting the alleged infraction and 

identification of the recipient as the alleged Responsible Party for the 
infraction; 

2. A statement that the Code Enforcement Officer has determined the 

activity to be an infraction; 

3. A statement of the action required to remedy the infraction and the 

time and/or date by which the remedy must be completed; 

4. A statement advising that if the required remedy or cure is not 

completed within the time specified, a citation will be issued and that a civil 

penalty in the maximum amount provided for the particular infraction may be 

imposed. 

SECTION 6: Voluntary Compliance Agreement. 

The City and a Responsible Party may enter into a written voluntary compliance agreement 

to attempt to resolve the alleged infraction. The fact that a person alleged to have committed 

a civil infraction enters into such an agreement shall not be considered an admission of 

having committed an infraction for any purpose. The City will not serve or file a citation 

while a voluntary compliance agreement is in effect and is being complied with. If the terms 

of the voluntary compliance agreement are satisfied, the City shall take no further action 

concerning the alleged infraction other than those steps necessary to terminate the matter. If 

the voluntary compliance agreement is not complied with, the Code Enforcement Officer 

shall issue a citation for the infraction. Nothing in this section precludes informal resolution 
without a written agreement. 



Page 3 City of Bay City Ordinance _____ - Prescribing civil infractions, penalties, and enforcement 

SECTION 7: Right of Entry.   

 When a Code Enforcement Officer has reasonable cause to believe that a 

condition or activity on private property constitutes an imminent danger to the 

public health, safety, and welfare, the Code Enforcement Officer may enter the 

property to abate the dangerous condition or activity. When a Code Enforcement 

Officer has reasonable cause to believe that a structure, activity, or condition on 

property is in violation of a City Ordinance, he or she may enter the property at 

reasonable times to inspect or to perform the duties imposed by City Ordinances, 

provided that if such building or premises is occupied, that credentials be 

presented to the occupant and entry requested.  If such building or premises is 

unoccupied, the authorized Code Enforcement Officer shall first make a 

reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person having charge or control of 

the building or premises and request entry.  If entry is refused, the authorized 

Code Enforcement Officer shall have recourse to the remedies provided by law to 

secure entry.  

  

SECTION 8: Stop Order. 

A Code Enforcement Officer may issue a Stop Order if a Responsible Party 

allows real property, personal property, a building, or a structure to be used in a 

manner causing an infraction. A Code Enforcement Officer may also issue a Stop 

Order if a Responsible Party allows any work regulated by any City ordinance to 

be performed in a manner that causes an infraction. The Code Enforcement 

Officer shall post the Stop Order on the property and shall, if possible, serve a 

copy of the order on any Responsible Party in the manner provided in Section 14 

of this Ordinance. The Stop Order shall fix a time limit within which compliance 

must be achieved.  

 

SECTION 9: Violation of Stop Order.  

If the infraction continues after the issuance of a Stop Order, a Code Enforcement 

Officer may issue a civil infraction citation under this Ordinance to the 

Responsible Party. Violations of this section constitute a Class C Civil Infraction. 

 

SECTION 10: Work Without a Permit.  

 Whenever any work for which a permit is required by City Ordinances has 

commenced without proper City authorization, a Code Enforcement Officer may 

issue a civil infraction citation under this Ordinance to the Responsible Party. 

Payment of penalties resulting from the infraction shall not exempt a Responsible 

Party from compliance with any other provisions of City Ordinances nor from any 

other penalties.  

  

SECTION 11: Authority to Disconnect Utilities in Emergencies.  



Page 4 City of Bay City Ordinance _____ - Prescribing civil infractions, penalties, and enforcement 

 The Enforcement Officer shall have the authority to disconnect utility services, 

and/or other energy supplies to a building, structure, premises or equipment 

regulated by City Ordinances when necessary to eliminate an immediate hazard to 

life or property.  The Enforcement Officer shall, whenever possible, notify the 

serving utility, the owner and occupant of the building, structure or premises of 

the decision to disconnect prior to taking such action, and shall notify such 

serving utility, owner and occupant of the building, structure or premises in 

writing of such disconnection within a reasonable time thereafter.  

 

SECTION 12: Citation Issuance and Form.       

A. Issuance. A civil infraction citation may be issued any time after discovery of an 

infraction. Only an authorized Code Enforcement Officer may issue citations for City 

ordinance violations. 

B. Form of Citation. The City may use any form sufficient to inform the Respondent 

of the nature of the alleged infraction and the necessary remedy. The citation must include, 

at a minimum: 

1. A description of the infraction;  

2. Date and location of the infraction(s) and approximate time the 

infraction(s) was observed;  

3. Code section(s), ordinance(s), order(s), permit(s), license(s), approval(s), 

or condition(s) violated;  

4. Description of the corrective action required;  

5. A statement explaining that each day the infraction continues constitutes a 

separate infraction;  

6. The amount of the civil penalty imposed for the infraction(s), which the 

Code Enforcement Officer may determine and the Municipal Judge may 

subsequently modify within the limits prescribed by City Ordinance, with 

a notation that civil penalties may continue to accrue until the infraction(s) 

is remedied;  

7. The period of time, if any, to remedy the infraction(s);  

8. Remedies to cure the infraction(s);  

9. That any civil penalty shall be paid to the City within thirty (30) days of its 

final assessment by the Municipal Judge, the procedure for payment, and 

the consequences of failure to pay;  



Page 5 City of Bay City Ordinance _____ - Prescribing civil infractions, penalties, and enforcement 

10. A statement indicating that the Responsible Party is entitled to request a 

Municipal Court hearing and is entitled to present arguments and evidence 

in his or her defense at the hearing;  

11. A statement indicating the time, date, and location of the hearing, if 

requested;  

12. A statement indicating that the Responsible Party may submit a written 

response to the citation in lieu of appearing at a hearing;  

13. A statement describing the Responsible Party’s right to appeal the decision 

of the Municipal Court;  

14. The signature of the Code Enforcement Officer who issues the citation.  

15. The name of the person cited;  

16. The date on which the citation was issued;  

SECTION 13: Service of Citation. 

Service of citations on individuals may be made by any of the following means: 

A. Personal Service. A Code Enforcement Officer may personally serve a Responsible 

Party with a citation by hand-delivering the citation to the person. However, no Code 

Enforcement Officer shall unlawfully trespass on private property to deliver a citation.  

B. Service by Mail. Service may be made by mailing a copy of the citation by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, to the Responsible Party’s last known mailing address. 

Service by mail shall be deemed to occur three days after mailing within the State, and seven 

days after mailing outside the State. Default may be entered against a person served by mail 

on submission of evidence of receipt, non-acceptance, or rejection of the certified mail. 

C. Service by Posting. If the alleged infraction relates to real property, the citation may 

be served by posting the citation at the main entry to an occupied residence or office on the 

property if the person to whom the citation is issued is not present. A copy of the citation 

shall be mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the responsible person at the 

mailing address of the property no later than the end of the business day following posting. 

For the purpose of this section, Saturdays, Sundays, and Federal or City holidays shall not 

be considered business days. If service is made in accordance with this subsection, service 

shall be at least ten days before the court appearance date contained in the summons. Service 

shall be completed upon mailing. 

SECTION 14: Filing of Citation. 

The Code Enforcement Officer shall file the original citation and a return of service showing 

service as authorized in Section 13 of this Ordinance with the Municipal Court. 



Page 6 City of Bay City Ordinance _____ - Prescribing civil infractions, penalties, and enforcement 

SECTION 15: Response, Answer and Appearance. 

A. Response Options. The Respondent shall respond to the citation either by appearing in 

court as specified in the citation or by submitting a written answer that must be received 

by the Municipal Court prior to the scheduled appearance. Answers and appearances 

may be through legal counsel. A Respondent who submits a written answer received by 

the City prior to the scheduled appearance is not required to appear at the scheduled 

appearance. It is the Respondent's responsibility to assure that any written answer is 

received by the court prior to the appearance date. 

B. Written Answer. The Respondent's written answer may take three forms: 

1. A written explanation, with payment of the amount stated in the 

citation. The statement shall constitute a waiver of hearing and consent to 

judgment. The written information may contain evidence that the violation has 

been corrected. The court shall review the written statement, the citation and 

any other evidence that may be available, including any written submission of 

the Code Enforcement Officer. The court shall issue a judgment based on the 

record and may notify the Code Enforcement Officer and the Responsible Party 
of the decision. The court may refund some or all of the amount submitted. 

2. An admission of the infraction, accompanied by payment of the 

amount stated in the citation. On receipt of an answer admitting the civil 

infraction, the court shall enter judgment in the amount stated in the citation. 

3. A denial of the infraction and statement indicating whether the 

Respondent will appear at the scheduled hearing.  

C. A written explanation without payment shall be treated as a denial. 

D. Appearance. If the Respondent does not file an answer before the scheduled appearance 

date, the Respondent must appear in court as scheduled. At the in-court appearance, the 

Respondent may admit the infraction, not contest the infraction, or deny the infraction. 

If the Respondent admits or does not contest the infraction, the Respondent will be 

allowed to provide an explanation, including evidence that the violation has been cured, 

and may request that the penalty be reduced or waived. Appearances may be rescheduled 

for good cause by agreement of the court and Respondent prior to the date scheduled for 

the hearing. Requests for rescheduling shall be in writing and should normally be made 

at least seven days prior to the scheduled hearing. If the Respondent does not deny the 

infraction, the Municipal Judge shall determine the amount of the penalty to be imposed 
and shall enter a judgment. 

SECTION 16: Hearing. 

A. If the Respondent's request for a hearing is received by the court prior to the scheduled 

appearance, a hearing date will be set by the Municipal Court. The Municipal Court shall 

notify the Respondent by mail of the date and time of the hearing. 



Page 7 City of Bay City Ordinance _____ - Prescribing civil infractions, penalties, and enforcement 

B. The Respondent may be represented by a lawyer at Respondent's expense. 

Respondent or Respondent's lawyer shall provide written notice to the court that Respondent 

will be represented. If notice of appearance by a lawyer has not been provided the Judge at 

the hearing shall give the Code Enforcement Officer the option of proceeding or postponing 
the hearing so that the City Attorney may be consulted. 

C. The City Attorney may appear at any hearing and may assist the Code Enforcement 

Officer in all cases. 

D. Each party shall have the right to present evidence and witnesses, to cross- examine 

the other party's witnesses, and to submit rebuttal evidence. 

E. If the Respondent wishes to compel the attendance of witnesses, the Respondent must 

submit a written request to the court at least 10 days prior to the scheduled hearing, 

accompanied by a reasonable fee set by Council resolution, to cover the costs of preparing 

the subpoena. The Code Enforcement Officer or the City Attorney may also request that the 

court subpoena witnesses. Signed subpoenas shall be given to the party seeking the subpoena, 

who shall be responsible for serving the subpoena and for paying each subpoenaed witnesses 
a witness fee of $35.00 per day. 

SECTION 17: Evidence at Hearings. 

A. Only evidence relevant to the infraction alleged in the citation will be considered or 

admitted.  

B. Oral evidence shall be taken on oath or affirmation. 

C. Hearsay evidence may be used for the purpose of supplementing or explaining any 

direct evidence but shall not be sufficient in itself to support a decision unless it would 

be admissible under the Oregon Rules of Evidence. 

D. Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the type of evidence on which responsible 

persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs. 

E. Irrelevant and unduly repetitious evidence shall be excluded. 

F. The City shall have the burden of proving the alleged infraction by a preponderance of 

the evidence. 

G. The City shall not call the Respondent as a witness, but if the Respondent chooses to be 

a witness, the City may examine the Respondent and shall not be limited to cross-

examination. 

SECTION 18: Decision and Appeal. 

A. The court shall determine whether the infraction alleged in the citation was 

committed and shall enter judgment accordingly, including the amount of any penalty 

imposed. A copy of the judgment shall be delivered to the Respondent personally or by mail. 



Page 8 City of Bay City Ordinance _____ - Prescribing civil infractions, penalties, and enforcement 

The judgment may provide that payment be suspended or reduced if the violation is cured 

within a specified time. 

B. The decision of the Municipal Court shall be final. Judicial review of the Municipal 

Court decision shall be by writ of review under ORS Chapter 34. 

SECTION 19: Enforcement. 

A. Failure to Appear or Answer. If a cited person fails to respond to a citation as 

required by this chapter, a default judgment shall be entered in the amount of the scheduled 

penalty. 

B. Payment of Penalty and Fees. Any penalty or fee shall be paid no later than 10 days 

after entry of the judgment or at such later time as authorized by the Municipal Judge or by 

agreement with the City. 

C. Enforcement Mechanisms. If a Responsible Party fails to satisfy his or her 

obligations pursuant to a Municipal Court judgment and the judgment meets the 

requirements of ORS 221.351(1), the City may levy a lien against the real property of the 

Responsible Party in accordance with the provisions of ORS 221.351. The City may also 

pursue any other enforcement options authorized by law, including, but not limited to the 

proceedings detailed in ORS 221.346.  

D. Licenses and Permits. The City may deny or revoke any City license or permit held 

by or applied for by a person who has not paid a Municipal Court judgment imposing a civil 

penalty within the time provided in the judgment.  

SECTION 20: Civil Penalty. 

The Council may designate violations of the Bay City Code as particular classes of 

infractions and establish maximum penalties for each class by ordinance.  The Municipal 

Judge may determine the amount required to be paid as a civil penalty within any maximum 

limits set for each class of infraction. The Municipal Judge may also determine the amount 

to be paid as a civil penalty for infractions that do not have not been designated as a 
particular class.   

SECTION 21: Schedule of Penalties. 

A. Infractions for violations of the Bay City Code are classified as follows: 

1. Class A civil infractions with a maximum civil penalty of $1,000.00. 

2. Class B civil infractions with a maximum civil penalty of $750.00. 

3. Class C civil infractions with a maximum civil penalty of $500.00. 

4. Class D civil infractions with maximum civil penalty of $250.00 

 

 

PASSED FIRST READING by the Council this __ day of __________, 2020. 



Page 9 City of Bay City Ordinance _____ - Prescribing civil infractions, penalties, and enforcement 

PASSED SECOND READING by the Council this __day of _________, 2020. 

APPROVED by the Mayor this __ day of _________, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Christopher K. Kruebbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Linda Downey, City Recorder 

 

 



PAGE 1     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

 
 
 
 

BAY CITY ORDINANCES 

ORDINANCE NO. 691 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE DEFINING NUISANCES; PROVIDING 

FOR THEIR ABATEMENT; PROVIDING PENALTIES; AND 

REPEALING PRIOR ORDINANCE #672. 

 

 The City Council of the City of Bay City ordains as follows: 

 

Section 1.  REPEAL. Bay City Ordinance #672, adopted October 11, 2016, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety. 

 

Section 2.  PURPOSE. The purpose of this ordinance is to protect the public health and safety 

and to improve the aesthetics of the City by eliminating health and safety hazards and prohibiting or 

restricting conditions and acts that adversely impact the beauty and livability of the City.  The 

Nuisance process described in this ordinance is intended to abate ongoing conditions, but some 

Nuisances may be of short duration and the City may also use the civil infraction process in 

Ordinance #690 to abate violations of this ordnance. 

 

 

Section 3.  DEFINITIONS. 

 

 3.1. Council.    The City Council of the City of Bay City. 

 

 3.2   Chronic Nuisance.  Any condition(s) on any real property which is a Nuisance under 

this Ordinance and has resulted in three violation letters issued by the City within any 

consecutive 24-month period. 

 

3.3. Dangerous Animal.  An animal reasonably considered as wild or exotic which has the 

ability to harm or to frighten people.  Dangerous animals include, but are not necessarily 

limited to, the following: 

 

3.3.1 Venomous snakes capable of inflicting serious physical harm or death to 

human beings; 

3.3.2.  Non-human primates and prosimians; 

3.3.3 Non-domesticated species of canines and their hybrids, including wolf and 

coyote hybrids; 

3.3.4  Crocodiles, alligators, caiman and gavials; 

3.3.5 Non-domesticated species including; but not limited to:  lions, tigers, lynx, 

leopards, cougars and bobcats; 

3.3.6 Raccoons, wolverines and weasels; 

3.3.7 Any animal reasonably considered a pest, dangerous, or which has 

threatened or attacked persons or domesticated pets within the City of Bay 

City. 



PAGE 2     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

 

3.3.8 Any animal that creates conditions which endanger the public health, 

safety, or welfare.  

 

3.4 Code Enforcement Officer.   The City Manager, Public Works Director, Fire Chief, 

City Planner, Building Inspector, and all other persons designated by the City Manager to 

serve as Code Enforcement Officer. 

 

3.5  Inoperable or Abandoned Vehicle.  Any vehicle which has no current valid state 

vehicle license, or which cannot be moved without being repaired or dismantled, or which is 

no longer usable for the purpose for which it was intended, and which has been in that 

condition for at least 15 days. 

 

3.6 Junk.  The term “junk” is personal property, waste, or material that in the sole 

discretion of the Enforcement Officer should be discarded and includes, but is not limited to:  

 

3.6.1 Refuse, garbage, glass, scrap metal, paper products, scrap lumber, concrete or 

asphalt chunks, cans and tires. 

 

3.6.2  Abandoned or unused furniture, machinery, toys, stoves, sinks, toilets, cabinets 

or other fixtures, appliances or equipment or any parts thereof. 

 

3.6.3 Combustible material likely to become easily ignited or debris resulting from 

any fire or any material which constitutes a fire hazard, as defined in the Uniform Fire 

Code. 

 

3.6.4 Inoperative, abandoned, or dismantled motor vehicles, trailers, campers and 

boats or any parts thereof. 

 

 

3.7 Municipal Court.  The Tillamook County Justice Court, which provides municipal 

court services to the City pursuant to an agreement under ORS 51.037.  

 

3.8 Municipal Judge.  The Tillamook County Justice of the Peace or other judge 

providing court services to the City.  

  

3.9 Noxious Vegetation.  Noxious vegetation is any vegetation that is, or is likely to 

become: 

 

3.9.1 A health hazard; 

3.9.2 A fire hazard 

3.9.3 A traffic hazard because it impairs the view of the public thoroughfare, or 

otherwise makes the thoroughfare hazardous; 

3.9.4 Poison Oak; 

3.9.5 Poison Ivy; 

3.9.6 Blackberry bushes that extend into a public way or pathway frequented by 

children, cross a property line, or are used for habitation by trespassers; 

3.9.7 Grass or weeds more than 12 inches high;  

3.9.8 Scotch Broom, English Ivy, Hogwood, Knotweed, and Purple Loosestrife; and 



PAGE 3     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

3.9.9 All other vegetation included in the State Department of Agriculture “Oregon 

Department of Agriculture Noxious Weed Control Policy and Classification 

System”. 

 

3.10 Nuisance.  A thing, condition, substance or activity which is injuring or endangering 

the public peace, health, safety or welfare; including, but not limited to, the things, 

conditions, substances and activities specified in this ordinance. 

 

 

3.11. Responsible Party.  The Responsible Party for abating a nuisance may include: 

 

 3.11.1 The owner of the property; 

 

3.11.2 Any agent of the owner, lessee, occupant, contract purchaser, tenant, or other 

person having possession or control of the property; and 

 

3.11.3 The person who caused a nuisance to come into or to continue in existence. 

 

3.12 Right-of-way. All property dedicated to the public for transportation and public 

utilities and administered by the city, including: City streets, roads, highways, alleys, 

sidewalks, public easements, and other similar public ways generally open to vehicular or 

non-vehicular transit, including the subsurface under and air space over these ways; but does 

not include parks, parkland, bridges unless pre-approved, or other City property not generally 

open to public transit or to vehicular transit. 

 

ANIMALS 

 

Section 4. Animals.  No person shall possess a dangerous animal, as defined above, within the 

City.   

4.1. No owner or caretaker of domesticated animals shall allow such animals to be at large 

in the City or to enter or remain on any private property without the consent of the 

Responsible Party for the property. 

 

4.2 No Responsible Party shall feed non-domesticated animals or keep food available out 

of doors, where it can be reached by raccoons, rats or other nuisance type animals. 

 

4.3. A Code Enforcement Officer may destroy a dangerous animal at large in the City if 

the animal is too hazardous to apprehend. 

 

 

Section 5. Removal of Carcasses.  No Responsible Party shall permit an animal carcass owned 

or controlled by the person to remain upon public property, or to remain outdoors on private 

property, for more than 24 hours from the time of death. 

 

NUISANCES AFFECTING PUBLIC HEALTH  

 

Section 5. Nuisances Affecting Public Health.  No Responsible Party shall cause or permit any 

Nuisance that affects public health to exist. The following are Nuisances that affect public health, 

which the City may abate as provided in this Ordinance: 



PAGE 4     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

 

5.1. Offensive Substances.  No, human or animal excrement, sewage, industrial waste or 

any putrid, nauseous, decaying, deleterious, offensive, hazardous or dangerous substance 

shall be allowed in a stream, well, spring, brook, ditch, pond, body of water, river or other 

inland or tidal waters within the City, nor shall it be allowed if the location of such 

substances creates a risk that high water or natural seepage will carry the same into such 

waters; nor shall such substances be allowed to pool or remain on the surface of any land, 

whether it be in public or private ownership.   

 

5.2.    Human remains.  No Responsible Party shall bury human remains other than in 

designated and approved cemeteries. 

 

5.3. Privies.  No Responsible Party shall maintain an open vault, privy, or portable toilet, 

except those constructed or maintained in connection with construction projects or City-

approved events and in accordance with State Health Division regulations. No Responsible 

Party shall maintain any open vault, privy, or portable toilet longer than one (1) week after 

the conclusion of the project or event without the written permission of the City.  

 

5.4. Surface drainage.  No Responsible Party shall allow drainage of liquid wastes, 

commonly known as “gray water,” to pool or become stagnant in a manner that affords a 

breeding place for mosquitoes and other insect pests. 

 

5.5. Cesspools. No Responsible Party shall maintain a cesspool or septic tank on his or 

her property without the prior written permission of the City. 

 

5.6. Odors.  No Responsible Party shall cause or permit offensive odors to spread from his 

or her property. 

 

5.7. Food Storage.  No Responsible Party shall store food in a manner that makes it 

available to rats, raccoons or other wild scavengers. 

 

5.8. Slaughterhouses, etc.  No Responsible Party shall operate a slaughterhouse or tannery 

without the prior written permission of the City. 

 

5.9. Animal Cages.  No Responsible Party shall maintain a barn, stable or corral, pen, 

chicken coop, rabbit hutch, pigsty or other place where animals are caged or housed, in an 

unsanitary condition or in a condition that creates an offensive odor. 

 

5.10. Obstruction of drains.  No Responsible Party shall obstruct or interfere with the flow 

of water in any ditch, drain or catch basin located in a public Right-of-Way or on public 

property or which causes water to flood public Rights-of-Way or public property. 

 

5.11   Insectaries.  No Responsible Party shall operate an insectary of any kind for 

commercial purposes within the City.  An insectary does not include bee hives or bee 

keeping within the City. 

 

NUISANCES AFFECTING PUBLIC SAFETY 

 



PAGE 5     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

Section 6. Abandoned Refrigerators.  No Responsible Party shall leave in a place accessible to 

children an abandoned or discarded icebox, freezer, refrigerator or similar container or 

appliance of more than 1.5 cubic feet capacity without first removing the door. 

 

Section 7. Attractive Nuisances.  No Responsible Party shall permit thereon: 

 

7.1 Unguarded machinery, equipment or other devices which are attractive, dangerous 

and accessible to children. 

 

7.2 Lumber, logs or pilings placed or stored in a manner so as to be attractive, dangerous 

and accessible to children. 

 

7.3 An open pit, quarry, cistern, cesspool or other excavation or hole of a depth of 4 feet 

or more and a top width of 12 inches or more without safeguards, fencing, covers or barriers 

to prevent such places from being used by children. 

 

7.4 This section shall not apply to authorized construction projects with reasonable 

safeguards to prevent injury or death to playing children. 

 

Section 8. Dangerous Excavations. 

 

8.1. No Responsible Party shall allow an excavation to remain unguarded by suitable 

barriers. 

 

8.2. Any obstruction on a Right-of-Way shall be marked by red or yellow warning lights 

during the hours of darkness.  It shall be the responsibility of the person creating, maintaining 

or in charge of such obstruction to ensure the installation and operation of the warning lights. 

 

8.3  No excavations shall be done in a Right-of-Way unless permitted or authorized in 

writing by the Bay City Public Works Director. 

 

Section 9. Snow and Ice Removal. 

 

9.1. A Responsible Party shall maintain the sidewalk abutting his or her property in a 

reasonably good condition that allows for safe and unobstructed pedestrian traffic. 

 

9.2. No Responsible Party shall allow ice to remain on the sidewalk for more than two 

hours of daylight after the ice has formed unless covered with ash, sand, salt or other suitable 

materials. 

 

Section 10. Public Rights of Way.   

 

10.1 No person shall place in a public Right-of-Way any bushes, trees, structures including 

park benches, play structures, storage sheds and animal shelters or coops, unless the person 

obtains ROW permit from the City. 

 

10.2  No person shall obstruct, partially or fully, passage of any person or vehicle on a 

public Right-of-Way, whether improved or unimproved.  Obstruction includes, but is not 

limited to:  planting of hedges, ropes, barriers, fences, cement blocks, storing of disabled 



PAGE 6     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

equipment or vehicles or any other activity which inhibits the free movement of a person 

walking or, if improved, riding in a vehicle over the Right-of-Way.  

 

10.3 On any dirt, gravel or unimproved Right-of-Way, no person shall operate any 

motorized bicycle, dirt bike or other motorized vehicle in a manner that causes road gravel to 

scatter, that degrades the Right-of-Way, or creates or causes potholes or other dangerous 

conditions in the Right-of-Way. 

 

 

 

 

Section 11. Trees. 

 

11.1 No Responsible Party shall allow any brush, bushes, trees, limbs, shrubbery, flowers 

or other growth, whether grown for food, fuel, shade or ornamentation, to project over a 

sidewalk at an elevation of less than eight feet above the level of the sidewalk, or over a 

street at an elevation of less than 18 feet above the level of the public way. 

 

11.2 No Responsible Party shall allow a dead or decaying tree to stand that is a hazard to 

the public or to persons or other property on or near the property. 

 

11.3 A tree is considered a hazard if its condition would allow the tree to fall during winds 

normally experienced in the area and it is foreseeable that damage would result to a person or 

other property from the fall of the tree. 

 

11.4 No Responsible Party shall plant or keep trees or bushes over water lines or sewer 

lines servicing the property, or in close proximity to any fire hydrants where the plant growth 

would inhibit use of the hydrant. 

 

11.5 Nothing in this ordinance shall be deemed to impose any liability upon the City, its 

officers or employees.  Nothing in this ordinance shall be deemed to relieve a Responsible 

Party from the duty to keep trees and shrubs and other vegetation upon private property or 

under the owner or occupier’s care and control in a safe condition. 

 

Section 12. Grass, Shrubbery, Weeds and Noxious Growth.  No Responsible Party shall permit 

weeds or other Noxious Vegetation to grow upon their property, or onto the public Right-of-Way 

abutting their property.  It shall be the duty of a Responsible Party to cut down or to destroy grass, 

shrubbery, brush, bushes, weeds or other noxious vegetation as often as needed. 

 

Section 13. Junk and Debris. 

 

13.1. No Responsible Party shall keep or cause to be deposited on their property any Junk, 

as defined in this Ordinance, for a period of more than ten (10) consecutive days, without 

preventing visibility from public Rights-of-Way. 

 

13.2. A Responsible Party may have Junk on their property, so long as said Junk is wholly 

blocked from public view  and meets the requirements of Section 3.1 of City Ordinance #374 

(Development Ordinance). 

 



PAGE 7     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

13.3. A Responsible Party shall be responsible for removing Junk from the premises if it is 

visible from a public Right-of-Way, if it constitutes a hazard or Nuisance. 

 

 13.4. This Section 13 shall not apply to: 

 

13.4.1 Junk kept in a duly licensed junkyard, automobile wrecking house, automobile 

sales lot or automobile repair shop. 

 

  13.4.2 Stacked firewood. 

 

13.4.3 Construction debris occurring pursuant to a valid building permit, provided it 

does not constitute a threat to public health and safety. 

 

Section 14. Scattering Rubbish.  No person shall deposit upon public or upon private property any 

kind of rubbish, trash, debris, refuse or any substance that would mar the appearance, create a stench 

or fire hazard, detract from the cleanliness or safety of the property, or would be likely to injure a 

person, animal or vehicle traveling upon a public way. 

 

Section 15. Fences. 

 

15.1. No person in charge or control of property shall construct or maintain a barbed-wire 

or razor-wire fence thereon, or permit barbed or razor-wire fences to remain as part of a 

fence along a Right-of-Way. 

 

15.2. No person in charge of property shall construct, maintain or operate an electric fence 

along a Right-of-Way or along the adjoining property line of another person. 

 

15.3 No person in charge of property shall construct, maintain or operate an electric fence 

within 10 feet of a property line unless a solid barrier fence is located on the outer perimeter 

of the electric fence. 

 

Section 16. Surface Waters, Drainage and Culverts. 

 

16.1. No Responsible Party shall direct or redirect rainwater, wetlands, streams or 

intermittent water sources onto another person’s property, or onto a Right-of-Way, other than 

incidental runoff. 

 

16.2. A Responsible Party shall install and maintain, in proper state of repair, adequate 

drainpipes or drainage system so that any overflow water accumulating on the roof or about 

the building is not carried across or upon Right-of-Way or neighboring property, unless a 

stormwater easement is provided . 

 

16.3 A Responsible Party shall not remove snow or ice from his or her property and cast it 

or deposit it onto Right-of-Way or onto the property of another. 

 

16.4 A Responsible Party shall not fill or divert any natural drainage ways existing on their 

property, unless authorized by the City in writing.  

 



PAGE 8     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

16.6   A Responsible Party shall not cover, obstruct, or interfere with any components of 

sewer or drainage systems in the public Right-of-Way. 

 

NUISANCES AFFECTING THE PUBLIC PEACE 

 

Section 17. Notices and Advertisements. 

 

17.1. This provision only covers signage not addressed under the City’s sign ordinance, if 

any. No person shall affix or cause to be affixed a placard, bill, notice, advertisement poster 

or sign of any kind upon real or personal property, public or private, without first securing 

permission from the owner or person in control of the property.  All such temporary placards, 

bills, notices, advertisement posters or signs of any kind shall be removed within twenty-four 

(24) hours after the close of the event being advertised.  This section shall not be construed as 

an amendment to or a repeal of any regulation now or hereafter adopted by the City 

regulating the use of and the location of signs and advertising.  

 

17.2 A Responsible Party shall not allow any sign to obstruct the Right-of-Way and shall 

not allow any sign to be affixed to public property.  

 

17.3 This section does not prohibit the distribution of advertising material during a parade 

or approved public gathering. 

 

Section 18.  Unreasonably Loud Noise.  No person shall cause unreasonably loud or raucous noise 

that disturbs, injures, or endangers the comfort, peace, and safety of reasonable individuals of 

ordinary sensitivity within the City without written permission from the City.  

 

ABATEMENT PROCEDURE 

 

Section 19. Declaration of Nuisance; Unenumerated Nuisances. 

 

19.1 The acts or conditions specified in Sections 3 through 18 of this Ordinance are 

declared Nuisances and such acts or conditions may be abated by any of the procedures set 

forth in Section 19 through 26 of this Ordinance. 

 

19.2 In addition to the Nuisances specifically provided and identified within this 

ordinance, every other thing, substance, or act which is determined by the Code Enforcement 

Officer to be injurious or detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare of the City, or 

any of its citizens, is declared a Nuisance and may be abated as provided in this Ordinance. 

 

Section 20. Abatement Citation. 

 

20.1 Upon determination by the Code Enforcement Officer that a Nuisance exists, the 

Officer shall issue a citation consistent with Section 20.3 of this Ordinance directing the 

Responsible Party to abate the Nuisance within thirty (30) days of the date of posting. The 

Code Enforcement Officer shall serve the citation to the Responsible Party in accordance 

with Section 13 of City Ordinance No. 690. 

 

20.2. At the time of posting, the Code Enforcement Officer shall cause a copy of such 

citation to be mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the Responsible Party 



PAGE 9     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

at his or her last known address and to the address shown on the county tax records.   After 

posting and mailing a copy of the citation, the Code Enforcement Officer shall also file a 

copy of the citation and a return of service with the Municipal Judge.  

 

20.3. The citation shall include all the information specified in Section 12(B) of City 

Ordinance No. 690 (Civil Infractions). 

 

20.4. Upon completion of the posting and mailing, the person posting and mailing the 

citation shall execute and file a certificate stating the date and place of the mailing and 

posting. 

 

20.5. An error in the name or address of the owner or person in charge or control of the 

property or the use of name other than that of an owner or other person shall not make the 

notice void, and in such case, the posted citation shall be sufficient. 

 

Section 21. Abatement by the Responsible Party. 

 

21.1. Within the time allowed after posting and mailing of such citation, as provided in 

Section 19 of this Ordinance, or a different period of time authorized in writing by the City 

Manager, the Responsible Party shall abate the nuisance or show cause that no Nuisance 

exists. 

 

21.2. Within ten (10) days of posting the citation under Section 20.1, a Responsible Party 

may respond in the manner provided in Section 15 of City Ordinance No. 690 to either 

protest that no Nuisance exists or admit the infraction. If a Responsible Party protests, the 

Municipal Judge shall schedule a hearing of the Municipal Court. 

 

21.3. The Responsible Party’s appearance in Municipal Court shall be governed by Section 

15(D) of City Ordinance No. 690.  The Responsible Party may request a hearing with the 

Municipal Judge in accordance with Sections 16 and 17 of City Ordinance No. 690 and the 

Municipal Judge shall thereupon determine whether or not a Nuisance in fact exists. If the 

Municipal Judge determines that a Nuisance exists, he or she may issue a judgment directing 

the Responsible Party to abate the Nuisance.  If the Municipal Judge issues a judgment to 

abate, the City shall also mail a copy of the judgment to the last known address of the 

Responsible Party or to the address listed in the county tax records for that person. 

 

21.4. If the Municipal Judge determines that a Nuisance does in fact exist, the Responsible 

Party shall, within the time specified in the judgment to abate, abate the Nuisance. The 

judgment of the Municipal Court is final. The Responsible Party may appeal the judgment by 

filing a writ of review with Tillamook County Circuit Court under ORS Chapter 34.  

 

Section 22. Joint Responsibility. 

If more than one person or entity is a Responsible Party, they shall each be jointly and 

severally liable for abating the Nuisance, or for the costs incurred by the City in abating the 

Nuisance. 

 

Section 23. Abatement by the City. 

 



PAGE 10     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

23.1 If, within the time allowed, the Nuisance has not been abated, the City may cause the 

nuisance to be abated. 

 

23.2 The Code Enforcement Officer charged with abatement of the Nuisance shall have 

the right at reasonable times to enter into or upon property to investigate or cause the removal 

of a Nuisance subject to applicable laws. 

 

23.3 The City shall keep an accurate record of the expenses incurred in abating the 

Nuisance, including the City’s attorney’s fees, staff time and out-of-pocket expenses and in 

addition, there may be a surcharge of twenty (20) percent of the total costs to the City for 

reimbursement of administrative overhead. 

 

Section 24. Assessment of Costs. 

 

24.1 The City, by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, shall forward a notice to the 

Responsible Party stating: 

 

24.1.1 The total cost of abatement, including the administrative overhead, the City’s 

attorney’s fees and civil fines, if any. 

  

24.1.2 The cost, as indicated, will be assessed to and become a lien against the 

property unless paid within thirty days from the date of notice. 

 

24.1.3 A statement that upon the recording of the abatement lien, that interest will 

accrue at the rate of 9% per annum. 

 

24.1.4 If the owner or person in charge or control of the property objects to the cost 

of the abatement as indicated, that person may file a written notice of objection with 

the City Recorder not more than ten days from the date of the notice. 

 

24.2. Upon the expiration of ten days after the date of the notice, the Municipal Judge, in 

the regular course of business, shall hear and determine the objections to the costs to 

be assessed. 

 

24.3. If the costs of the abatement are not paid within thirty days from the date of the 

citation, an assessment of the costs as stated or as determined by the Municipal Judge shall 

be made by order and shall thereupon be entered in the lien docket of the City; and upon such 

entry being made, shall constitute a lien upon the property from which the Nuisance was 

removed or abated by the City. 

 

24.4. The lien shall be enforced in the same manner as set forth in ORS 223.510 et. seq.  

 

24.5. An error in the name of the Responsible Party shall not void the assessment, nor will 

a failure to receive the notice of the proposed assessment render the assessment void; but it 

shall remain a valid lien against the property. 

 

Section 25. Emergency Abatement. 

 



PAGE 11     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

25.1  The City Manager, Chief of the Fire Department, the Code Enforcement Officer, or 

other person designated by the Council or City Manager, may proceed summarily to abate a 

Nuisance which imminently endangers human life, health or property.   

 

25.2 Summary abatement may be performed immediately by a Code Enforcement Officer 

subject to applicable law and without notice by the City to a Responsible Party. 

 

Section 26. Penalties.  A violation of this Ordinance constitutes a Class C Violation under City 

Ordinance No. 690 (Civil Infractions).  However, the City Council may designate any violation of 

this Ordinance as a different class under Ordinance No. 690 by resolution. This penalty shall be in 

addition to and unaffected by any other remedy taken by the City.  Each day’s violation of a 

provision of this ordinance constitutes a separate violation. 

 

26.1 The imposition of a penalty under this Ordinance does not relieve a person of the duty 

to abate the Nuisance.  

 

26.2 The City shall have all other remedies available to it allowed by law.  The remedies 

provided in this Ordinance are nonexclusive and the City may seek and impose more than 

one remedy for any Nuisance. 

 

 

Section 27. Severability.  The sections and subsections of this ordinance are severable.  The 

invalidity of one section or subsection shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections of 

subsections. 

 

Section 28. Repeal.  Ordinance No. 672 is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

 

 

 PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Council this ____ day of _____ 2020 and APPROVED 

by the Mayor this ____ day of _____, 2020. 

 

 

 

By:         

     Christopher K. Kruebbe, Mayor   

 

 

 

ATTEST:          

       Linda Downey, City Recorder 

 

 

 

 

First Reading: _______________ 

 

Second Reading: __________________ 

 

Adoption:      



PAGE 12     BAY CITY ORDINANCE NO.  

Ayes:       

Nayes:       

Abstentions:      



BAY CITY JANUARY 2020 UPDATE 

 

 

During the month of January 2020, the Tillamook County Sheriff’s Office 

responded to a similar number of incidents in Bay City as the month 

prior.   As most of you are aware the sheriff’s office fell victim to a 

cyber-attack and was held ransom for about 10 days.   While our 

computers and other electronic software were not available, we were 

able to maintain our presence and effectiveness in the community by 

answering calls and attending to the needs of citizens. 

We are also pleased to announce that we will have our mobile radar 

trailer available in in the coming weeks.  This trailer will be placed on 

various streets that receive the heaviest traffic and will help serve as a 

reminder to the community regarding vehicle speed.   

The Sheriff’s Office will have a team participating in “Donkey 

Basketball” on Monday, February 11th, at the Tillamook High School.  

This is part of the charity fundraiser that takes place every February.   



1 
 

 
Fire Department Report, February 2020 

   
 
In January, we responded to 15 calls for service; 10 Medical, 4 Mutual Aid, and 1 
Public Education Event. We had 118 response hours and 239 training hours. The 
Department’s total hours for the month were 513.      
 
Volunteer Activity and Status:  
In January we had a total of 20 volunteers that participated in January drills 
and/or calls for service. Firefighter Jacob Griffith responded to 92% of our calls for 
service followed by Captain Kapiniak and Firefighter Stacey who each responded 
to 57% of our calls for service. Firefighter Jacob Griffith had a total of 75 hours for 
the month followed by Firefighter Worel with 58, and Firefighter Stacey with 47 
hours for the month.   
 
We will be losing a few volunteers and are currently recruiting for positions from 
Firefighter, to Fire medic and driver operator. We also continue to have a need 
for non-response volunteers to support our operational activity in various station 
duties.  
   
Training Program:  
Three Volunteers Participated in Rockaway Beach’s Fire Academy and will 
continue with Hazardous Materials training in March.  
 
We have changed our drill structure to be more representative of actual calls for 
service. We are beginning to focus on Fire, and other skills. We are building from 
Personal Protective Equipment, Fire Hose Stretches, Ventilation control, Ground 
Ladders, and into Firefighter Safety and Survival as we conduct all of our drills.   



2 
 

 
Online training is continuing as trainees complete basic entry level classes, and 
Officers complete ICS and incident operations classes.  
 
The Officer’s Corps are also focusing on skill development with regard to Incident 
Management, including Size up and Initiating Incident command.  
 
 
Administrative:   
In January, I worked a total of 155 hours in the station, meetings, and assisting 
with Rockaway’s Fire Academy. I also completed an additional 31 hours in 
training, calls for service, and drills. My total hours for January were 186.    
 
Duty Officer Coverage was difficult to maintain, and I had to cover more shifts 
than is usually. I am still struggling with taking days off as there are often no 
coverage options to simply staying available. I will be taking a long weekend in 
February.   
 
I am beginning to take full advantage of the new computers, and have begun 
training Captain Kapiniak in Fire Bridge as well as further delegating Human 
Resource documentation and applications to Assistant Chief Bentley.  
 
I have been in discussion with an entity that may be able to provide a scholarship 
toward the implementation of an Electronic Suite to manage all of our Fire 
Department needs. I am hoping to be able to move toward this system in the 
early months of 2020 so as not to have to reenter too many events.    
 
We have one maintenance opportunity that was found when we conducted 
training on Pump Transmissions. There is an issue with Engine 41-13 that will 
require a seal replacement in the near future. I have requested quotes and 
estimates to have this work completed before it grows into a more expensive 
problem. I anticipate requiring a budget change to allow moving funds from 
contingency to Operation Equipment and repair for this project.  



3 
 

Permits, Development, and Fire Life Safety:  
In meeting with the New Planner, I foresee an intake procedure in the very near 
future. I believe we will begin with the zoning permit before proceeding with 
more complex reviews, this simple act will allow for me to be involved at nearly 
the same time with each application, and generally at a point where required 
information such as a site plan have been provided to the city.  
 
I have begun to familiarize myself with the 2019 Oregon Fire Code, and will be 
attending a mandatory training in May for code changes.  
   
 
Recruiting:  
We are once again looking for volunteers. If you know of anyone interested in 
providing service to their community, and interested in the Fire Service, Please 
invite them to visit one of our weekly fire drills. Drills are held each Wednesday at 
7:30 pm, and the community is always welcome to attend.   
 
 
     Respectfully,  

Darrell Griffith 
Fire Chief 
Bay City Fire Department  



Pay Period: 01/01/20 thru 01/31/20 Payroll and Attendance 
 January 2020

Date D=
Dr

ill
, O

M
= 

O
ffi

ce
r's

 M
TG

, T
=t

ra
in

i

n 
= 

N
o 

Po
in

ts

Ca
ll 

Ty
pe

An
de

rs
on

 K
ar

l

Be
nt

le
y,

 A
ar

on

Gi
ng

er
ic

h,
 Jo

sh
ua

Gi
ng

er
ic

h,
 S

am
m

ie

Gr
iff

ith
, D

ar
re

ll 
A

Gr
iff

ith
, D

ar
re

ll 
M

Gr
iff

ith
, J

ac
ob

Ha
rr

is,
 A

ar
on

Ha
rr

is,
 B

ra
nd

i

Ha
rr

is,
 D

av
id

Hu
se

by
, J

ac
e

Ka
pi

ni
ak

, J
on

N
el

so
n,

 C
ut

te
r

O
'B

ria
n,

 K
ai

tli
n

Si
gm

an
, B

rid
ge

t

St
ac

ey
, D

av
id

Th
ra

ll,
 Ja

m
es

W
ak

ef
ie

ld
, J

am
es

 Jr

W
ak

ef
ie

ld
, T

im
ot

hy

W
at

so
n,

 K
az

W
or

el
, L

ar
ry

1/8/2020 D 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
1/15/2020 D 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
1/22/2020 D 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
1/29/2020 D 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

1/8/2020 OM 1 1 1
1/15/2020 OM 1 1 1 1 1
1/22/2020 OM 1 1 1 1
1/29/2020 OM 1 1 1 1 1

Rockaway Academy 48 32 48 235
on line training 2 2 4

1/2/2020 C MA-31-F 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
1/2/2020 C Med 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1/6/2020 C MA-71-F 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
1/9/2020 C Med 1 1 1

1/16/2020 C MA-21-F 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
1/17/2020 C Med 1 1 1 1 1 1
1/18/2020 C Med 1 1 1 1
1/19/2020 C Med 1 1 1 1 1
1/19/2020 C Med 1 1 1 1 1
1/21/2020 C Med 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1/21/2020 C Med 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
1/22/2020 C MA-71-F 1 1 1 1
1/26/2020 C Med 1 1 1 1 1 1
1/27/2020 E Pub Ed 2 2 2 2
1/27/2020 C Med 1 1 1 1 1 118

Station/Meetings 155 1 156
Hours 15 18 6 2 2 186 75 11 2 2 3 24 5 4 11 47 14 8 20 0 58 513
% of calls 42% 28% 14% 0% 0% 92% 92% 28% 0% 0% 7% 57% 14% 7% 14% 57% 35% 14% 85% 0% 0%

Min Drills y y n n n NA y n n n n y no n y y y n n n y
W/C # y ac y y y fc y y y y y y y y y y y y y n y 18

An
de

rs
on

, K
ar

l

Be
nt

le
y,

 A
ar

on

G
in

ge
ric

h,
 Jo

sh
ua

G
in

ge
ric

h,
 S

am
m

ie

G
rif

fit
h,

 D
ar

re
ll 

A

G
rif

fit
h,

 D
ar

re
ll 

M

G
rif

fit
h,

 Ja
co

b

Ha
rr

is
, A

ar
on

Ha
rr

is
, B

ra
nd

i

Ha
rr

is
, D

av
id

Hu
se

by
, J

ac
e

Ka
pi

ni
ak

, J
on

N
el

so
n,

 C
ut

te
r

O
'B

ria
n,

 K
ai

tli
n

Si
gm

an
, B

rid
ge

t

St
ac

ey
, D

av
id

Th
ra

ll,
 Ja

m
es

W
ak

ef
ie

ld
, J

am
es

 Jr
.

W
ak

ef
ile

d,
 T

im
ot

hy

W
at

so
n,

 K
az

W
or

el
, L

ar
ry

RATE EL A.Chief LT FF1 N/A EMR EL OPS FF1 Capt. Lt. EMR

Stipend amount 20 500 0 0 0 N/A 20 0 0 0 0 400 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 20 985

Point @ $5 ea 10 8 4 1 1 18 30 6 1 1 2 12 3 2 5 18 8 4 14 0 16 164 820

Duty @ $50 4.75 2.50 5.75 3.00 1.25 0.50 17.75 887.50

2692.50



City Managers Report 

February 2020 

Even though we are in the middle of the fiscal year, it is the start of a new year, 2020, and there is so much 

to be looking forward too. There seems to be a lot of transitions and changes that are much needed but also 

can take more energy than maintaining the status quo.  Some of these changes are within our control and 

some are outside of our control.  I have been reminded more than once that I can’t control many things, but 

I can control how I respond.  I have a gift that someone gave me a long time ago that has a saying engraved 

on it that I am reminded of.  It says,  

God, grant me peace to accept the things I cannot change, 

Courage to change the things I can, 

And wisdom to know the difference. 

I am thankful that Linda was able to continue to help us through this time of transition with her retirement 

and finding a new City Recorder/Treasurer.  It would have been very difficult to pull off what needed to be 

done without her, specifically end of the year reporting including inputting the new w-4’s into the account 

system, and preparing W-2’s and 1099’s.  This was not as easy as you might think, and our accounting 

program and support I think is something we need to look at after we get our new City Recorder/Treasurer 

on board.  Which by the way will be sooner than later.  Our interview team reviewed applications and 

interviewed six candidates, of which we were able to come to a consensus on one who we offered the 

position and was accepted.  We are in the process of doing background checks, so hopefully within a couple 

of weeks we will have our new City Recorder/Treasurer joining us and will be at our next Council 

Workshop and Meeting. 

My next goal is to develop a plan to reconfigure the interior layout of City Hall to meet the needs of the 

new Office of City Manager and provide a more conducive environment for city services to be provided.  

Hopefully I can get someone in to figure this out, at least for budget purposes, before April’s budget 

meetings, so we can have a good idea of what costs could be. 

We also are working on updating many of the ordinances that the City requires to operate.  The Citation 

and Nuisance Ordinances are scheduled for hearings at this upcoming Council Meeting.  The Admin 

Committee just started working through the new employee handbook which will replace the Personnel 

Ordinance.  DLCD/ODOT recently sent me the final scope of work for the review and update of the 

Development Ordinance.  So we will be starting that process here very soon.  And, the Industrial Sewer 

Users ordinance was recently presented in the Public Works Committee, while new industrial users 

applications and model permits will be developed to address better management and enforcement of 

industrial discharges. 

There was so much more that this format doesn’t allow for me to go into.  I’m happy to answer question 

and always have an open door. 

Sincerely, 

Chance Steffey, P.E. 

City Manager/Public Works Director 



Public Works Director’s Report 

December 2019 
 

 
Public Works Department 

 

Administration & Finance 

 

IT Support Services 

Met with Marcus Smith and Bryce Gartrell to review needs for implementing GIS and Network support.  

Did some tests on the capacity of our network at the WWTP & Public Works offices and discovered the 

current internet connection is too slow to base the GIS server at Public Works.  Upload speeds are extremely 

slow and really no way to increase with current internet service provider.  The high speed fiber-optic line 

is not that far away in Hwy 101 ROW, but do too the cost we will probably need to get some grant funding 

to help install.  There is a USDA-Rural Development grant program available for broadband infrastructure 

in rural areas.  We will try to see if we can access this and work on updating internet service.  Talked to 

Scott Fregonese and Bryce Gartrell about implementing GIS for planning services.  We already have base 

system and many of the GIS data sets for planning is available through other agencies, just a matter of 

linking in our existing system.  Will need to create some data files for our comprehensive plan zones and 

specific land use requirements. Will work on estimates for upcoming budget session. 

 

Emergency Management 

 

Have been collecting blankets at City Hall and the Fire Station and picked up two large boxes of donated 

blankets from Goodwill in Tillamook.  We will need to get some vacuum pack bags and our Fire Chief has 

coordinated with the Coast Guard to use their sealer.  I took a trip up to McRae’s to ask about placing 

container on their site, but no one was around.  I will need to call ahead but have been so busy, haven’t had 

time.  Need to purchase other supplies and place inside containers, but need to fix problem with 

condensation or we are going to have mold problem.  Brian cleared brush along the  3rd & High St. ROW 

at the location of assembly point.  Plan on preparing site as soon as weather allows. 

 

Engineering & Planning Division 
 

New Well Facility Plan-Water Rights Extension 

I have had a couple of conversations with Oregon Water Resources staff regarding the water rights 

extension and its impact on the progress of the facility plan for the well field and plans for the new well.  I 

contacted SHN with the findings I have from my conversations, but need to follow up regarding completing 

the facility plan as a priority so we can move forward with preparing grant applications for the design and 

construction of the new well.   

 

SHN has been working on developing an aquifer study and the impact of the withdrawal on the river. The 

thought was that the withdrawal from the wells is primarily taking water from the ground and not impacting 

the river.  This was to rebut the concern that ODFW has with not having an adequate amount of water 

available for fish habitat, particularly during the late summer/early fall.  ODFW has recommended that we 

would only be allowed 1.92 cfs during these months of low flow, which was the amount of water we were 

taking as of Oct. 1, 2000 (C-Date) even though we have a 20 cfs permit.  This whole thing is very 

complicated and quite confusing as to compliance with multiple agency requirements and meeting the 

current and future needs for water for City of Bay City and the other customers we serve.  We need to 

untangle some of the confusion and get moving on a plan to get the new well installed so we can investigate 

Well #1 and if we can rehabilitate or abandon. 



 

Patterson Creek Project 

Waiting on the draft Preliminary Engineering Report.  

 

Parks Division 
 

Al Griffin Memorial Park & Campground & Watt Family Park 

Coordinating with Shapiro-Didway on preparing grant applications for the Park projects.  Collecting data 

to be included in grant requests.   

 

Water Division 

 

Waterline break  

Crew worked on waterline break on 14th street near McCoy Ave.   A service line tap and corp stop was 

damaged and had been leaking for quite some time, but had just gotten to the point of failing.  We had to 

cut in section of new water main and replace the water service line. 

 

Electrical Power Outage at Well 

Winter storm caused a power outage at well site which initiated controls to turn on our emergency generator 

but failed.  After getting repaired, had failure of heat control switch on generator.  Discovered low engine 

oil. Made all necessary repairs and everything back online within a few hours.  We have had several power 

issues lately and I’m afraid that we are in need of some work on the electrical system.  When we install the 

new well, it might be a good time to review the whole system and make some improvements at that time.  

 

Wastewater Division 

 

Tillamook Country Smoker Discharge Violation 

Discharge violations continuing.  We have also had several complaints about bad smell coming from the 

facility.  Our staff investigated and took samples at the discharge point into our sewer collection system.  

Found effluent to be black in color and rancid smell.  This usually indicates that the wastewater is anoxic 

and anaerobic bacteria are present generating hydrogen sulfide.  We are still waiting for results from our 

reference lab.  I contacted TCS to let them know of the problems with the discharge and how its impacting 

our WWTP.  After meeting with them, we were asked about discharging directly from the DAF instead of 

after the SBR.  I contacted our Engineers to see about this as an option.  I was told that it wouldn’t be a 

good idea, it may make things worse.  I informed them of our engineers thoughts and reminded them that 

its their responsibility to meet their permit requirements.  Due to the significant concern with potential for 

losing both of our SBR cells and meeting our NPDES permit requirements and now the complaints, we 

may need to take stronger measures beyond fines and surcharges.  The new aeration tank that they had 

proposed to help alleviate problem with insufficient dissolved oxygen levels is to be delivered by Friday, 

February 7, 2020. We are continuously monitoring this situation and will keep the Mayor and Council 

informed of any significant developments. 

 

 

Streets & Stormwater Division 

 

SCA-Hobsonville Dr. Paving Project  

SHN is working on contract negotiations with low bidder Big River.  The bids we received were above 

our budget for this project, so we need to remove or reduce some of the work anticipated.  Plan to have 

contracts ready for execution at our March Council Meeting. 

 

 



Code Enforcement Division 

 

Code Enforcement: 

The Citation and Nuisance Ordinance revisions have been scheduled for public hearing at the February 

Council Meeting.  They have been available for the public and advertised and posted to meet public notice 

requirements.  This should help with the problems we have been having with having enforceable ordinances 

and giving us some discretion to gain compliance through voluntary mean.   The question I have for the 

Council is what is the expectations for enforcement within the City of Bay City? Are we going to enforce 

city codes based on complaints only or are we to patrol the city and initiate contact when we see code 

violations?  We really need to have some clear direction on this.  Either way, with the updated ordinances 

we need to be educating our community on what is acceptable behavior, especially when some things have 

been overlooked for so long. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Chance Steffey, P.E. 

 



Bay City Administrative Committee Meeting 

January 30, 2020 5:30 pm 

 

Kathy called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.  

 

Agenda: Review of Employee Handbook 

 

We have been presented with two drafts for our review. Copies were distributed to all those 

present. We will start with the January 2020 CIS template.  

 

Section I 

This version includes the updates to Pay Equity.  

Discussion was held on the No-Bullying Policy. Consensus around leaving language but 

including some emphasis (underlining, bold text) around guiding terms like “repeated, 

unreasonable actions.”  

Section F (p. 7) No Discrimination, 2nd paragraph change to “... employee to use [sick leave] 

[OFLA] [FMLA] if a reasonable …” 

 

Section II 

Consensus on having separate Volunteer Policies for Volunteer Firefighters and other City 

Volunteers, separate from this Employee Handbook. The Employee Handbook should include a 

reference to the existence of those other policies and handbooks, and that volunteers are thus 

not considered employees covered in this handbook.  

Under II.B.2. Need to change to reflect that regular part-time employees may be eligible for 

benefits.  

II.C. Workweek: City Hall and Public Works have different hours. Business hours. Include shift 

hours may be staggered or modified by supervisors in various departments.  

Need provision for “on call, standby” work assignments. Look at Tillamook, County, Manzanita. 

Call out needs to be actual call out, not just a phone call.  

Chance will come back with a proposal.  

Need to limit amount of comp time that can be accrued, to be used (encouraged) within 120 

days, and not-taken comp to be paid at the end of December each year.  

OT to be assigned based on rotation schedule (no seniority) unless specific skills are needed.  

G.: Take out “non-exempt”. Chance sentence about “leaving the building” to “leaving their work 

station” Remove final sentences (beginning “Salaried exempt employees”) 

I: Discussion about cut off dates, automated systems, bi-monthly vs monthly payroll, draws, 

direct deposit. Chance will check around for some other options.  

L.: If there is a discrepancy, then it will be sent to the next level of supervision for review.  

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:50 pm.  



Bay City Emergency Management Committee  

Monday, February 3, 2020 6:00 pm 

Notes (Action items in bold) 

 

Agenda: 

1. David opened the meeting promptly at 6:00 pm. 

Welcome and Introductions were made by all.  

  

2. Street Captains 

Two street captains were present. Discussion was held on Dave & Diane 

becoming captains for their neighborhood. They have essentially done the 

research for being street captains.  

Discussion on radio communications, medications, phone trees.  

Dave will “relay the message” about setting up the radio for emergency 

information.  

 

3. Storage Container status 

The containers are painted and labeled. We have MREs. We need to get them 

sited and filled with basic supplies: tarps, blankets, water purification equipment, 

and perhaps some basic hand tools.  

The containers have been placed (thus far empty) at Watt Park and next to the 

Pennsylvania Reservoir. Condensation has been an issue already.  

Chance will check with Cathy Manis and the Red Cross about them placing 

emergency medical supplies in our containers.  

Gary has talked to chance about clearing the 3rd & High site, but Chance has not 

heard back from him yet. Chance will follow up with Gary.  

The blanket drive has been successful. We have blankets at City Hall and two 

boxes of blankets from Goodwill. The Coast Guard has procured a commercial 

vacuum sealer. Darrell will check into the use of it.  

Chance will talk to Precision Woodworking about placing a container on 

their site.  

 

 

4. ShakeAlert 

This alert is designed to send an alert before an earthquake. The alert could be 

as short as a few seconds and as long as two minutes. TCCA is procuring a 

shutdown for their ammonia storage. Darrell suggests we draft a letter of support 

for the council to sign, stating that we are interested in this project. Darrell will 

write upa draft. We could identify some potential target hazards that would be 

addressed through a system like this. This will give us an outline of what 

incidents we have in the city to be included, and drive the application/usage this 

way. Darrell will write a letter to the local businesses to ask them for their 

input on alert activities.  

 



5. Newsletter 

We’re moving the newsletter back a couple weeks so that we can include some 

introductions.  

Articles: 

● Public Safety (Wendy) 

● Fire Department (Darrell) 

● City/Admin/PW: 1-2 articles (Chance) 

● Helen’s Corner (Helen) 

● New council member 

● New city recorder 

 

 

Next meeting: The next scheduled meeting will be Monday, March 2, 2020 at 6:00 pm.  

 

David adjourned meeting at 7:09 pm.  



DRAFT FOR MARK-UP   01-28-2020 

FIVE YEAR LOCAL LEVY FOR ALL HAZARDS FIRE DEPARTMENT PROTECTION  

REPLACES PRESENT FIRE PROTECTION LEVY 

CITY OF BAY CITY SPECIAL ELECTION { }  

Notice is hereby given that on {date of election}; an election will be held in the City of Bay City, 

Tillamook County, Oregon. This is a vote by mail election. The following question shall be 

submitted to the qualified voters thereof:  

QUESTION:  Shall Bay City impose a five-year all-hazards protection levy for {$.90} per $1000.00 

of assessed value beginning {date of levy beginning}?    

SUMMARY: This measure may be passed by majority vote. This measure replaces the City’s 

current local levy which supports the Bay City Volunteer Fire Department. The approval of this 

levy would allow the City to continue to provide its citizens all-hazards protective services by 

providing support for Fire Department staff, equipment, planning and training.  The proposed 

levy maintains the effective rate of the current local levy. 

The proposed rate will raise approximately {year one}, {year two}, {year three}, {year four} and 

{year five}.  

The local option is subject to the limits of Section 11(b) of the Oregon Constitution and may 

reduce tax collections for other units of government. For a $100,000 assessed value house, the 

estimated total cost would be {$.90} per $1000.00 assessed value, or {$90.00} per year. The 

estimated tax cost for this measure is an ESTIMATE ONLY.  The estimate is based on the best 

information available from the Tillamook County Assessors Office at the time of estimate and 

may reflect the impact of early payment discounts, compression and the collection rate.  

This legal notice is to be published in the Headlight Herald in Tillamook City, Oregon.  

DATED this { } day of { }.  

CITY OF BAY CITY  

Other than the effective levy dates, the ONLY language change would be under the SUMMARY.  

This language change is to clarify the application of levy funds to: PROVIDE ITS CITIZENS ALL-

HAZARDS PROTECTIVE SERVICES BY PROVIDING SUPPORT FOR FIRE DEPARTMENT STAFF, 

EQUIPMENT, PLANNING AND TRAINING. 



Page 1 of 7      11/11/2019 Bay City Council Workshop Minutes 

BAY CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP  
NOVEMBER 11, 2019 
3:30 P.M.  
 
Members Present: David McCall, Kathy Baker, Helen Wright, Melissa Rondeau and 
Christopher Kruebbe. Wendy Krostag joined the meeting already in progress.  
 
Staff Present: Attorney Christy Monson, Chance Steffey, Darrell Griffith and Linda 
Downey. 
 
Others present: Gary and Hilda Frey, Mona Rose and Rick Kneeland 
 
1. Attorney Monson Council Training Session 
 New City Attorney Christy Monson provided a brief Council training.  
 
 She spoke about the purpose of the Council regardless of the reason they ran for 
 public office. She spoke about setting aside their own interest and putting the 
 City's best interest as a priority.   
 
 Christy reviewed the ethics law, the roll of the Council for goal setting and policy 
 making.  
 

Christy explained that calling a public meeting is a big deal. The City Council can 
only make decisions with a quorum and a majority vote. She spoke about the 
importance of staying with an agenda and not adding additional items or 
discussions during the meeting.    

 
 She cautioned Council and the Mayor to stay within the scope of their duties. 
 Outside the scope of the duties or authority puts them at risk of personal 
 liability.   
  

Christy explained that Ordinances made laws, Resolutions are temporary in 
nature giving formal approval of something, Policies are administrative 
sometimes they are adopted by resolution. Working rules set procedural rules 
and Christy recommended the Council review them annually. The Council should 
discuss the expectations of the rules. How are the meeting going? Are the 
meetings running too long? Are they starting on time? Are people interrupting 
each other? Create the rules to address the expectations of the Council.  
 
Public meeting law was discussed.  

 
Wendy Krostag joined the meeting at 4:10 p.m. 
 

Christy spoke about Executive Session. There are only a few reasons that allow 
an Executive Session. No final decision can be made during an Executive 
Session. Motions and decisions must be made in a public hearing. Salaries can 
not be discussed in an Executive Session.  



Page 2 of 7      11/11/2019 Bay City Council Workshop Minutes 

Gary Frey acknowledged the Visitors' Propositions at the beginning of each 
meeting. Gary asked what was the public's roll is after the Visitors Proposition 
portion of the meeting. Christy said the audience's job is to listen to the meeting. 
Some agencies allow comments if they are allowed by the Mayor or the person 
running the meeting. Comments from the audience should be brief not create an 
additional agenda item.  

 
2. Proposed Organizational Transition Plan 
 Christy reviewed the process of creating a City Manager position.  
 
 Chris asked about the requirement to advertise the position. Christy stated that 
 there is some conflict in the personnel ordinance. However Section 8 allows the 
 Council to hire from within.    
 

David noted his support to create a City Manager position. David was concerned 
with the City Manager also doing the majority of the Public Works Director's 
position. Chance agreed that the work load would be significant and it is only 
proposed as a transitional plan.   

 
Helen felt Chance would be more than capable as a City Manager. She was 
concerned about the hiring and the time involved if the City chose to advertise for 
the position. 
 
Kathy was in support of creating a City Manager position. She also 
acknowledged the support of Brian, as the previous Public Works Director would 
assist in the transition period.   

 
Chance felt the current Public Works staff was more than capable of 
accomplishing the daily tasks of the department. However Chance recommended 
that he remain involved with the large projects.  
 
Discussion was held on the transition to replace Linda as City Recorder when 
she retires November 30, 2019. Linda is willing to stay and help for a time during 
the transition. The city personnel ordinance should be repealed and a handbook 
adopted.  

   
Chris called for a 5 minute recess at 5:53 p.m.  
 
Christy left the meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 
3. Visitors Propositions 

Julian Macassey from Rockaway Beach spoke about broadband internet access. 
He would like to see if the City or the County would be interested in owning an 
internet provider service. He will return with additional information for the City.   

 
4. Department Reports 
 A. Police 



Page 3 of 7      11/11/2019 Bay City Council Workshop Minutes 

The police report was provided in the council packet. Kathy noted that she 
was please to have a report and not just a list of calls.   

 
 B. Fire Department 
  Darrell reviewed his report with the Council. The Fire Department remains  
  very busy. There are currently 15 active volunteers.  
 

Darrel spoke about his concern for the public safety radio system. Funding 
of the radio system is being discussed at the County. Darrell also noted 
that the Tillamook ambulance is struggling to provide service. Ambulance 
staffing is low.  
 
Fire Department recruiting is going well but volunteers are still needed.  
 

 C. City Hall 
  Linda reviewed her report for the Council.  
  The 2018-19 Audit is available and posted at the city website.   

 
  The City Hall took part in the Great Shake exercise as well as the Public 

 Works and Fire Department.    
 

 Linda has been working with Angie on some cross training. Angie is 
currently the Deputy City Recorder.   

   
 D. Public Works 
  Chance reviewed the Public Works Report.  
 
  Chance is working with Scott Fregonese at Fregonese Associates on the  
  Planner's contract. The City Attorney made some revisions to the contract.  
 

Chance spoke about the replacement of water meters. The difficulties is 
getting the meters installed. Chance is proposing the meter readings be 
estimated every other month which would allow the week normally spent 
reading meters to be spent installing the meters. Discussion was held.  
 
Chance reviewed the remainder of his report.   
 
The Tillamook County Smoker is having difficulties with their discharge. 
They have been fined. The Smoker has hired an engineer to address the 
issue and are planning to put a temporary treatment systems in the right of 
way. 
 
Chris was contacted by a concerned citizen regarding the way finding 
signage. They felt like there was more signs in some areas and not 
enough in other areas. Chance believed all the signs have been installed 
with the exception of the assembly site at the Watt Family Park. Chance 
will review the plan. More signs could budgeted as needed.   

 



Page 4 of 7      11/11/2019 Bay City Council Workshop Minutes 

 
3. Committee Reports 
 A. Administrative Committee   
 Kathy spoke about the Administrative Committee Workshop.  

The Planner's contract and the City Recorder retirement and transition 
was discussed.  

   
  Discussion was also held on the replacement of he water meters.      
  
 B. Community Development  
 Wendy spoke about the workshop held for Community Development 

Committee. The Committee met and discussed the possibility of having 
business license in Bay City.  

 
 They also discussed how to get the most public involvement in the 

development of standards for the additional dwelling units (ADUs) issue.  
 
 C. Emergency Management  
  Melissa discussed the workshop held November 4, 2019.  
 
  Minutes were provided to the Council.    
 
 Melissa originally volunteered to chair the Emergency Management 

Workshop. However her schedule will not allow her to continue as chair. 
Helen Wright has volunteered to chair the committee. Melissa thanked 
Helen for chairing the committee.  

 
 Helen noted a group met to paint the emergency supplies containers. The 

signs will be placed on the containers.  
  

Gary Oldenkamp has agreed to look at the location and excavation for the 
placement of one of the containers.  

 
  Helen is working with Darrell to map out the block captains for the 

 neighborhood watch groups.   
 
 Linda noted that there is not a formal agreement with Precision Wood 

Works to place an emergency container. The location has been identified 
as an assemble site for years. 

 
 D. Public Safety  

 No report    
 
 E. Fire Committee 

 Pat Vining will attend tomorrow night's meeting and will speak about the 
 Fire Committee Workshop.  

 
  



Page 5 of 7      11/11/2019 Bay City Council Workshop Minutes 

       
4.        Minutes 
 Minutes of the 10/07/2019 Council Workshop and 10/08/2019 Regular Council 
 Meeting and 10/29/2019 Council Special Meeting.      
 
 The minutes were reviewed. 
 
 Helen announced the retirement party for Linda on November 22, 2019 and 
 invited everyone to attend.     
    
5. Treasure's Report 
 No comments.  
 
6. Bills Against the City 
 Bills will be reviewed following the workshop.   
 
7. Unfinished Business 
 A. City Planners Position  
  A brief discussion was held. The planning firm is reviewing the proposed 

 contract.  
    
 B. Bay City Water System   

 The city attorney is reviewing the issue and plans to provide the Council 
 with options for the water system.  

  
 C. Watt Family Park Playground & Day Use Area Improvement Project: 

 Notice of Award and Contract.    
 
 Chance noted Shapiro Didway a Portland landscape architecture firm was 

chosen to work on the park projects. The notice of award and contract is 
needed.   

 
 D. Organizational Transitional Plan  
  This issue was discussed earlier in the workshop. 
    
   8. New Business 
 A. Resolution 19-24 Budget Appropriations  

 This resolution moves General Fund contingency funds to the legal fees 
 line in the budget.  

 
 B. TLT Grant Application/Advisory Committee Recommendations  

 David asked for clarification of the TLT application. There were changes 
 made to the application. Linda explained that the applicant made 
 changes to the application when he was informed that the Council had 
 changed the allowed percent from 25% of the project to 75% of the 
 project.  

 



Page 6 of 7      11/11/2019 Bay City Council Workshop Minutes 

 Discussion was held. David requested Linda find out before the Council 
meeting if the applicant provided all required information from the last 
awarded grant and if the purchase of the business cards had already been 
made. TLT grants have not been awarded to reimburse expenses.  

 
 C. SHN Contract Addendum/ Pavement Maintenance Project 

 Additional pavement maintenance is being proposed with the Hobsonville 
 paving project and an addendum is required. 

 
 D. The Gartrell Group Contract Addendum/Phase II implantation GIS Project.  
  Phase I of the GIS project has been completed. This addendum is to 

 update the contract phase II of the project.   
 
 E. Internet Infrastructure Proposal / Computer Support & Services  
  This is a proposal from Computer Support & Services to increase their 

 internet services by placing an antenna at the Public Works facility and in 
 exchange provide services to the Public Works buildings.  

 
 F. Planning Commission Member Recommendation  

 Kathy explained that the past City Planner Sabrina Pearson applied to 
 serve on the  Planning Commission. The vote was not unanimous to 
 appoint her to the Commission and the Commission sent the 
 recommendation on to the City Council for a decision.   

 
  Kathy noted she felt that Sabrina was a fine individual and had a lot of 

 historical knowledge of the City. However Kathy had concerns about 
 appointing her to the Planning Commission without a 6 to 12 month wait 
 from her being let go as the City's Planner.  

 
Kathy felt that Sabrina had a bit of a confrontational attitude when people 
questioned her or her decisions at the last Planning Commission in which 
Sabrina was  a land use applicant.   

 
  When  discussion was held on Sabrina's application to serve on the 

 Planning Commission, Sabrina stated that if she was not appointed she 
 would take her work product and go along her merry way. Kathy 
 acknowledged that Sabrina was instructed to provide the City all work 
 product following her termination. To date she has not provided any 
 information or records to the City. 

 
  Developer Mona Rose worked with Sabrina on a recent project. She 

 stated that Sabrina was very smart but indicated that she would be very 
 intimidated if she had to go before her at the Planning Commission with 
 Sabrina on the Commission. Mona felt a waiting period was very 
 appropriate.    

   



Page 7 of 7      11/11/2019 Bay City Council Workshop Minutes 

  David noted the City should have a policy in place addressing terminated 
 contractors or employees. They should be required a wait time before 
 serving on any City board or committee.        

 
9. Mayor's Presentation 
  A.  Chris would like to see a new Vision Plan completed for the City.   
  
10. City Council Presentation 
 A. Councilor Killion / Resignation    
  Chris acknowledged Crystal's letter of resignation.  
 
 B. David asked that the John Gettman Award Committee be added to the  
  agenda. It was not added to this agenda as moved last month. Linda will  
  revise the agenda.  
 

C. David asked if the Reader Board could be added back to the agenda as 
well.   

         
11. Adjournment    
 The workshop was adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 
   
 
 
 
________________________ 
Linda Downey, City Recorder                                                                                                                               



Page 1 of 9 Bay City Council Meeting 11/12/2019 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
NOVEMBER 12, 2019 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/WELCOME - 6:00 P.M. 
============================================  
Mayor Christopher Kruebbe called the Bay City Council meeting to order at 6:00 
p.m. He invited everyone to stand and join him in the Flag Salute. The following 
Council members were present: David McCall, Kathy Baker, Helen Wright, 
Melissa Rondeau and Wendy Krostag. 
 
Others in attendance were Public Works Director Chance Steffey, Fire Chief 
Darrell Griffith, Officer Scott Griffith and City Recorder Linda Downey.  
 
See an attached list of visitors.   
  
Mayor Kruebbe acknowledged Veteran's Day and thanked all Veteran's for their 
service to our Country.  
 
1. PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 Citizens Bob Miles and Randy Stevenson thanked the Council for the 
 Veteran's Day cards they receive each year from the City.  
 
 Jody Daily informed the Council that the Oyster Club meeting was held 
 and 27 people attended. The group would like to work as a formal or 
 informal chamber for Bay City. They are researching the process.  
 
 Randy Stevenson spoke about his concerns of a few vehicles left in the 
 right of way. Director Steffey will look into his concerns.  
 
2. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 A. Police 
 
  Officer Griffith reviewed his report for the Council.  
 
 Officer Griffith informed the Council that they have been watching 

to insure vehicles stop at the stop signs. They have had fewer 
"Zombie RVs" and less trash dumping in the forest behind Bay City. 
The officers have been completing a drive through the forest area 
to keep a closer watch on it.  

 
 Officer Griffith reminded everyone as the cold weather is here, to 

not leave their car running unattended. Too many vehicles have 
been stolen in these situation.   

 
  November 30, 2019 is the annual Search and Rescue Banquet $25 
  per person. The banquet is how they raise funding for search and  



Page 2 of 9 Bay City Council Meeting 11/12/2019 

  rescue program.  
 
 B. Fire Department 
  Chief Griffith reviewed his report for the Council.  
 
  Call volume is high. Mutual aid calls are down and vehicle   
  accidents have increased.  
 
  There is a concern with the current radio system in the County.  
  Due to low staffing there is also a shortage and concern with the  
  ambulance service.          
 
           C. City Hall  
  Recorder Downey reviewed her report for the Council.   
   
 Recorder Downey requested assistance from Councilor Rondeau 

with the City's Facebook page. Councilor Rondeau reviewed the 
page settings and recommends the City start a new page that 
originates from a City email and not through an individual’s private 
Facebook page.    

   
           D. Public Works 
  Director Chance Steffey reviewed his report for the Council.   
 
  December 5, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. the Park Committee will hold a  
  Town Hall meeting to discussed park ideas.   
 
 The Smoker is working to resolve the issue with the treatment of 

their wastewater. The Smoker is requesting a temporary tank in the 
right of way while they work on the treatment system.   

 
 The perspective City Planner was unable to attend tonight's 

meeting due to a conflict in schedules.  
 
 Director Steffey noted that he will have an arborist inspect a tree in 

the Park that Mayor Kruebbe brought to his attention.  
 
 Discussion was held on the Hobsonville Point Road improvements.  
 
 Director Steffey is proposing that the water meters be read every 

other month. An estimated reading can be used for billing on the 
months that the meters are not read. This will allow more time for 
the public works department to work on the installation of additional 
radio read meters   

 
 Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Rondeau to 



Page 3 of 9 Bay City Council Meeting 11/12/2019 

support the Director's recommendation to read water meters every 
other month with an estimate bill in between. Motion carried 5-0.   

 
3. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
              A. Administrative Committee  
  Councilor Baker reviewed the Administrative Committee Workshop. 
 
  Organizational assessment decisions were discussed. There will be 
  several changes coming up including the new Planner's position,  
  Recorder Downey's retirement and restructure with a City Manager  
  and reorganization of the office.   
   
              B. Community Development 

Councilor Krostag reviewed the items discussed in the Community 
Development Workshop.  

  Business licenses were discussed. More research is required.  

  The issue of ADU's were also discussed the Community 
Development Committee will coordinate with the Planning 
Commission and would also like to receive public input.   

 C. Emergency Management Committee 
  Councilor Wright reviewed the Emergency Management Committee 
  Workshop.  

  A meeting was held. The emergency containers have been painted.  

  The next meeting will be held December 2, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 

  Councilor Wright spoke about the need for block captains and  
  community members to become involved to prepare for   
  emergencies.  

  a.) Councilor Rondeau noted that she had agreed to chair the                                                     
Committee. However has since decided she would be unable to 
commit to the position at this time. Councilor Wright has agreed to 
chair the Committee.  
    

  Motion by Councilor Rondeau and second by Councilor Krostag to 
appoint Councilor Wright as the Emergency Management Chair. 
Motion carried 5-0. 
  

  Mayor Kruebbe thanked Councilor Rondeau and Councilor Killion  
  for serving as chair on the Committee.  
  
 D. Public Safety    
  Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Baker   



Page 4 of 9 Bay City Council Meeting 11/12/2019 

  to merge the Public Safety into the Emergency     
  Management Committee. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 E. Fire Committee 
  Pat Vining chair of the Fire Committee reviewed the Fire Committee 
  Workshop. 

The Committee is looking at the wording for a new fire levy after the 
current levy is finished. The new levy would be revised with 
explaining the use of the funds. Including identifying stipends.  

Fire Chief Griffith explained that the Department of Labor and FLSA 
allows the City to give a nominal amount to a volunteer and the 
court cases so far have ruled that the 20% threshold is the 
threshold you do not want to violate or it is no longer a nominal 
amount.  

The Committee is looking at a recommendation of a new levy and 
possibly of a new fire district.   

Pat encouraged the Council to attend the next Fire Committee 
workshop.   

6. MINUTES  
10/07/2019 Council Workshop, 10/08/2019 Regular Council 
Meeting and 10/29/2019 Special Council Meeting.  

 Minutes were reviewed.   
 
Motion by Councilor Krostag and second by Councilor McCall to 
approve the minutes as presented. Motion carried 5-0. 

7. TREASURER’S REPORT 
Recorder Downey will file the report for audit.  

8. BILLS AGAINST THE CITY| 
Bills were reviewed after the workshop.   
 
Motion by Councilor Krostag and second by Councilor McCall          
to approve the bills in the amount of $63,363.86. Motion carried 5-0. 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. City Planner Position   

  Director Steffey acknowledged the Planner's contract in the 
 Council Packet.  

  Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Baker   
 to approve the Contact for Planning Services with Fregonese 
 Associates, Inc. Motion carried 5-0.    



Page 5 of 9 Bay City Council Meeting 11/12/2019 

 
B. Bay City Water System  
 This item will remain on the agenda. 

 C.  Watt Family Park Playground & Day Use Area Improvement 
 Project Notice. | 
 
 Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Baker 
 to approve the personal service contract with indemnity 
 between the City of Bay City and Shapiro Didway, LLC for 
 the Watt Family Park & Day Use Area Improvements. Motion 
 carried 5-0. 

   Mayor Kruebbe thanked Frank Moran for his donation of 
 trees for the Park.  

 D. Organizational Transisiton Plan 

  Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Baker 
 to approve Resolution 19-25 a Resolution creating a City 
 Manager position and delegating certain administrative and 
 supervisory authority and duties to the City Manager. 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
  

10. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Resolution 19-24 Budget Appropriations 

 
  City Recorder Linda Downey explained the Resolution was 

 to move contingency money in the General Fund into the 
 Legal Services line item.   

 
  Motion by Councilor Baker and second by Councilor 

 Rondeau to approve Resolution No. 19-24 A resolution 
 providing for budget appropriation changes for fiscal year 
 2019-2020. Motion carried  5-0. 

   
B. TLT Grant Application / Advisory Committee 
 Recommendations. 

 
  Discussion was held on the TLT Grant application from 

 Tillamook Bay City RV Park.  
 
  Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor 

 Krostag to approve the TLT Grant request to Tillamook 
 Bay City RV Park in the amount of $7332.75. Motion carried 
 5-0.  

 
   



Page 6 of 9 Bay City Council Meeting 11/12/2019 

   
C. SHN Contract   

  Director Steffey explained they have incorporated other 
 similar projects into the Hobsonville project.   
 

  Motion by Councilor Baker and second by Councilor 
 Rondeau to approve the SHN Contract Addendum #192. 

 
  Discussion was held on the difficulties to obtain bids for 

 paving projects.  
 

  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 D. The Gartrell Group Contract Addendum  
 
  Director Steffey explained the addendum to the Gartrell 

 contract was to continue developing the GIS program. 
 
  Motion by Councilor Krostag and second by Councilor 

 McCall to approve The Gartrell Group contract change 
 order #1. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
 E. Internet Infrastructure Proposal / Computer Support &  

 Services.  
   

 Discussion was held on the request received from Eric 
 Lessor from Computer Support and Services to place an 
 internet tower for services. 

 
  Discussion was held. Council members requested additional 

 information regarding the location and if an enclosure is 
 required.  
 
 This item will be tabled until more information is received.  

 
 F. Planning Commission Member Recommendation 

  
 The Planning Commission made the recommendation with a 

3-2 vote to appoint Sabrina Pearson to the Planning 
Commission.     
 

 Councilor McCall was very disappointed that Ms. Pearson 
submitted her application to serve on the Planning 
Commission. Ms. Pearson was the previous City Planner 
and to appoint her to a position directly overseeing the exact 
same positon especially after her contract was terminated by 



Page 7 of 9 Bay City Council Meeting 11/12/2019 

the City was inappropriate. Councilor McCall felt it would be 
better for anyone serving as an employee or contractor to 
have a time of separation before serving on a committee that 
oversees the exact position they held.   
 
Councilor Krostag was disappointed that the City had no 
written policy requiring any individual a time of separation 
from terminated contracted services before serving on a 
committee.   

 
  Tom Imhoff acknowledged the decision was difficult for the 

 Planning Commission. Ms. Pearson's is a resident that 
 offered to volunteer in her field of expertise. However he also 
 agreed the City should have a policy requiring a time of 
 separation before serving in this capacity.  

 
 Pat Vining spoke in favor of Ms. Pearson's appointment. He 

noted her knowledge of Bay City. He did not feel Ms. 
Pearson would serve with any vengeance. 

 
 Mayor Kruebbe felt the concerns the Council has included 

Ms. Pearson’s promise to provide a buildable lands inventory 
to the City and then did not provide the information.   

 
 Councilor Baker acknowledged Ms. Pearson's work and 

knowledge of the City. However she was very disappointed 
at her comments made at the Planning Commission meeting 
that if the Council did not approve her appointment she 
would take all of her information with her and leave. 
Councilor Baker felt that her care for the City only went as 
far as her position with the City. Her actions disappointed 
Councilor Baker. The City had required her to provide a copy 
of all Bay City files. She has not yet provided the information. 

  
 Mayor Kruebbe felt the contingency was a bit upsetting and 

disturbing. Mayor Kruebbe felt that she was putting 
contingencies on her being appointed. Mayor Kruebbe 
suggested this issue be tabled and allow her to come to the 
meeting to discuss the concerns. The Council did not feel 
this issue needed to be tabled.     

 
 Councilor Rondeau acknowledged Ms. Pearson's ability to 

reapply to the Planning Commission. She is a very intelligent 
individual and is more than welcome to reapply.  

 



Page 8 of 9 Bay City Council Meeting 11/12/2019 

  Motion by Councilor Wright to not accept her appointment to 
 the Planning Commission. Motion died for lack of a second.  

 
 G. John Gettman Award Committee 
  Councilor McCall acknowledged the need to appoint 

 members to the John Gettman Award Committee. 
 
  Councilor McCall nominated Gretchen Power. Councilor 

 Baker volunteered to be a representative on the Committee. 
 Councilor Rondeau volunteered to be on the Committee.  
 Councilor Krostag volunteered and nominated Jody Daily. 
 Bob Miles volunteered to serve on the Committee.  

 
 Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Baker 

to appoint Gretchen Power, Councilor Baker, Councilor 
Rondeau, Councilor Krostag and Bob Miles to the John 
Gettman Award Committee. Motion carried 5-0. 

   
H. Reader Board / Kiosk 

  Discussion was held on the placement of a reader board on 
 leased property next to the Post Office.   
 
 Councilor McCall recommend the City contact Tillamook 
 PUD, and Tillamook Coast to obtain additional information 
 on signs. 
 

  Tom Imhoff noted the development ordinance does not 
 allow off premise signs. There are other development 
 standards that should possibly be changed.  
 

  Discussion was held on possible locations to place the sign. 
 The Fire Department was identified an appropriate location.   
  
 Motion by Councilor Baker and second by Councilor Krostag    
 to Have Councilor McCall pursue information from Tillamook 
 PUD on the sign and research placement possibilities for a 
 double sided sign. Motion carried 5-0. 

  
11. MAYOR’S PRESENTATION 
  A. Mayor Kruebbe spoke about his research for building a  
   boardwalk. He contacted Gary and Karla Albright with  
   the Pioneer Museum and the Confederated Tribes of Grande 
   Ronde concerning the boardwalk. They were interested in  
   the creation of the boardwalk. 

  B. Mayor Kruebbe noted he felt the City should begin a revised  
   Vision Plan.   



Page 9 of 9 Bay City Council Meeting 11/12/2019 

   Randy Stevenson spoke in favor and recommended Town  
   Halls meetings be held.  
 
   Pat Vining noted that the last Vision Plan was completed in  
   2000 and it is time to revise the plan.     

  C. Mayor Kruebbe stated that each day 22 Veteran's commit  
   suicide due to PTSD. He had cards if anyone was   
   interested in contributing to a program to provide service  
   dogs for Veterans and First Responders with PTSD.   

12. CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION  

  A. Councilor Wright announced the retirement party for City  
   Recorder Linda Downey on November 22, 2019 at 6:00 p.m. 
   in the Ad Montgomery Hall.    

  B. Councilor Killion /Resignation 
   Councilor Killion submitted her resignation for her position on 
   the Council.  

   Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Baker  
   to accept Councilor Killion’s resignation effective today.  
   Motion carried 5-0. 
 
   Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor   
   Krostag to announce the Council vacancy and accept   
   applications from qualified applicants and bring   
   applications received back to the Council for review. Motion  
   carried 5-0. 

13.  CITY ATTORNEY PRESENTATION 
  Attorney Monson was not in attendance.  
  

14. AJOURNMENT 
  Motion by Councilor Wright and second by Councilor McCall to  
  adjourn the meeting at 8:10 p.m. Motion carried 5-0. 

 

 

       __________________________ 
       Christopher Kruebbe, Mayor 

 

________________________ 
Linda Downey, City Recorder 



Bay City Council Workshop 12/09/2019 - 1 - 

 

BAY CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 

DECEMBER 9, 2019 

5:30 P.M. 

Members Present:  Kathy Baker, David McCall, Helen Wright, Melissa Rondeau and Chris Kruebbe. 

Staff Present: Chance Steffey, Darrell Griffith and Angie Cherry 

Others Present: Jodi Daily, Tom Imhoff, Gary Frey and Hilde Frey 

1. Visitors Proposition 

Jodi Daily expressed her concerns about not being able to serve on the City Council as she lives in 

the Urban Growth Boundary (UBG). The City Charter does not allow for any persons living in the 

UBG to serve on City Council as stated by Chris. Jody would to like see persons living in the UBG have 

representation in the City. 

There was a discussion concerning Chris running the Workshop as a formal meeting. Councilors did 

not agree and requested an open discussion. The workshop continued to be held as a meeting 

instead of a workshop. 

Darrell discussed annexation for Fire Protection. Chance discussed annexation of the UBG into City 

limits. It would require the extension of the sewer system into the UBG. Chance stated this would be 

a major undertaking. It would require a Local Improvement District and put to a vote.  Discussion 

was held on the possibility of adding a Council member from the UBG. Dave mentioned that the City 

should be receiving a Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI) soon that would indicate how much property is 

available in the City and if there is enough. This may indicate whether the City would need 

annexation for more BLI. Dave also stated that annexation process and fees can happen over a 

period of time. 

Tom stated that there would be an election involved in an annexation. He also thought that sewer 

may not need to be completed immediately, but over a period of time. 

Helen asked Darrell if an exception could be made for persons living in the UBG. Darrell thought that 

would not work. Chris stated there were other persons that maybe interested that live in the City 

limits. Angie stated applications that could be received, however they would not be submitted until 

the following Council Meeting as there were not included the current council packet. Chris stated as 

Mayor, he could make a nomination for City Council.  No further public comment was made. 

 

2. Department Reports 

A.  Police Report – The Police report was submitted for the City Council packets. Chance stated there 

was a summary and an incident report. Darrell asked for an electronic copy of the spread sheet in 

the future. Chance stated the report was in an Excel program. Discussion was held. 

B.  Fire Report – Darrell submitted a report for the packet. He reviewed the Fire Department Report 

for December 2019, the Training Program and the Administrative Report. There was also discussion 

regarding the Zoning Permits and Fire Code that needs to be met. Reference was made to Bayfront 

Lane and the hazards created by parking on the street. Discussion was also held about EMS Advisory 

board and the issues with the Ambulance Service. Dave asked about the stipends for covering duty 

shifts at the Fire Department. 



Bay City Council Workshop 12/09/2019 - 2 - 

 

C. City Manager – Chance wrote his first City Manager report which was included in the Council 

packet. He attended the Tillamook County Housing Commission meeting and reviewed the Housing 

Needs Analysis. Discussion was held. 

 

Tom asked if there was a risk of the City losing its waste water discharge permit because of the 

issues at the Tillamook Country Smoker (TCS).  Chance stated not at the moment. There was a 

potential issue recently, but the Waste Water Treatment Plant typically keeps everything low. 

Discussion was held regarding the current issues. TCS was recently issued a Right of Way permit to 

install a new pre-treatment system to be installed. Tom asked about an estimated timeline of 

installation. TCS has not given Chance an exact date, but TCS is currently being charged monthly in 

fines. 

D. Public Works Report – Chance reported that the new City Planner, Scott Fregonese and DLCD 

Representative Lisa Phipps would attend the Planning Commission meeting on December 18, 2019 

to discuss a new Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) ordinance. 

Chance reported that Public Works is busy installing new water meters in the City. Meter reads will 

be estimated and read every other month until all new meters are installed. Tom asked if there 

would be forgiveness for leaks that go undetected in the interim. There is a process at City Hall for 

exception on leaks and forgiveness. 

 

3. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Administrative Committee - Kathy stated there was not a meeting in December. 

B. Community Development - There was not a meeting in December. 

C. Emergency Management – Helen reviewed the Emergency Management progress. They are 

currently working on a blanket drive and looking for Block Captains. Dave informed the Council 

that a newsletter will be going out in February and he would request submission by the end of 

January. Jody will be writing for the Headlight Herald Fencepost. Please keep her informed of 

requests to be posted. 

D. Fire Committee – Met and discussed a funding option for a new Fire Levy and or a Fire District. 

The committee will be meeting again on December 16, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. discussion was held. 

 

4. MINUTES – Minutes of the 11/11/2019 Workshop, 11/12/2019 Regular Council Meeting and 11/22/ 

2019 Special Council Meeting. Minutes that were available were reviewed and corrections were 

requested. 

5. TREASURER’S REPORT – No Comments 

6. BILLS AGAINST THE CITY – David and Melissa reviewed bills with staff at 5:00 p.m. Total bills were 

$56,736.69  

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Reader Board/Fire Station - Discussion was held on the cost and placement of a Reader Board 

for the City of Bay City. Dave talked to Nan Devlin Visit the Tillamook Coast for possible 

assistance in the cost of Reader Boards from TLT funds. 

Dave requested that items from previous meetings by placed back on unfinished business which 

included; Bay City Water System, Internet Infrastructure Proposal / Computer Support & 

Services, John Gettman Award Committee and NLC Service Line Warranty Program. 

 



Bay City Council Workshop 12/09/2019 - 3 - 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Planning Commission Member Recommendation 

Tom reviewed the Planning Commission Recommendation for Rick Knode and Dan Overholser. 

Kathy requested that both applicants attend the Council Meeting on December 10, 2019. 

Discussion was held. 

B. Resolution 19-26 Interfund Loan – Chance reviewed the resolution for City Council and where 

the funds would come from. Discussion was held regarding the loan. 

C. Resolution 19-27 Reallocation of General Funds for Professional Services – Chance explained 

this resolution is an accounting issue. If approved, funds would be transferred from Personnel 

Services to Contract Services. 

D. City Recorder / Hiring an Exempt Employee – Chance explained the current personnel 

ordinance and the need to repeal and replace with an updated ordinance. The City is currently 

in transition between approvals by City Council verses the City Manager. Discussion was held. 

E. Habitat for Humanity / SDC Exemption Request – Dave asked if anyone from Habitat would be 

attending the City Council meeting. Dave stated that he had some concerns regarding an 

exemption request. Tom was concerned that the City cannot afford this. Discussion was held 

regarding SDC fees and how these are specifically used.  Chance stated he would ask if someone 

would be available to attend City Council meeting to answer the concerns of City Council. 

 

9. MAYOR’S PRESENTATION 

 

A. Chris wanted to submit for the record that he handed Helen a copy of Ordinance 679 and she 

tore it up. 

B. ShakeAlert: An Earthquake Early Warning System for the West Coast of the United States 

https://www.shakealerrt.org/ Melissa asked Chris to clarify what the ShakeAlert and explain a 

little more. Chris gave a description of ShakeAlert.  Discussion was held. 

 

10. CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION – Kathy attended several events in the city and appreciated the 

involvement of the City Council, the Mayor and citizens. 

 

11. CITY ATTORNEY PRESENTATION – None 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT – The workshop was adjourned at 7:26 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.shakealerrt.org/


Page 1 of 6 Bay City Council Meeting 12/10/2019 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
DECEMBER 10, 2019 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/WELCOME - 5:30 P.M. 
============================================  
Mayor Christopher Kruebbe called the Bay City Council meeting to order at 5:35 
p.m. He invited everyone to stand and join him in the Flag Salute. The following 
Council members were present: David McCall, Kathy Baker, Helen Wright, and 
Melissa Rondeau. Council member Wendy Krostag arrived at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Others in attendance were City Manager / Public Works Director Chance Steffey, 
Fire Chief Darrell Griffith, Officer Mike Arnold and Deputy City Recorder Angie 
Cherry.  
 
See an attached list of visitors.   
 
1. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

Executive Session Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2) Consult with Legal 
Counsel 

 
 Mayor Kruebbe  
 
 The City Council went into Executive Session at 5:37 p.m.  
 The Council returned to Regular Session at 6:17 p.m.  
 
 No action was taken.   
 
2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Randy Stevenson neighbors what they would to see in the Parks. 
Councilor Wright didn't hear the request and made a comment. Mayor 
Kruebbe reminded Councilor Wright not to interrupt. Randy stated he 
would personally do a Park Survey. Chance stated there was a Park 
Survey available at the City Hall counter. Pat Vining thanked Councilor 
Wright for her volunteer efforts in our City Parks. 

 
3. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
 A. Police 
 

Officer Arnold reviewed his report for the Council. Officer Arnold reminded 
everyone to not leave their car running attended. 
Officer Arnold reminded everyone it is the holiday season and try not to 
leave delivered packages unattended and not be a victim. He also stated 
the Tillamook County Sheriff was participating in a canned food drive.  
Tom Imhoff asked if the camping was still occurring in the woods in Bay 



Page 2 of 6 Bay City Council Meeting 12/10/2019 

City. Officer Arnold stated the camping has subsided.  
Council Baker asked if any complaints had been received regarding Watt 
Family Park. Officer Arnold suggested to call the non-emergency dispatch 
at 503-815-1911 if there concerns. Officer Arnold left at 6:30 p.m.  
 
 
B. Fire Department 
 

 Chief Griffith reviewed his report for the Council. 
   

The Fire Department is currently recruiting for new members due to the 
loss of several members. November is generally difficult for staffing. 
Chief Griffith summarized the completion of installation of new computers 
and network storage. Installation of the video security system is moving 
forward. 
Fire lane access was discussed on Bayfront Lane because of parking and 
building permits-zoning permits. 
 
C. City Manager 

 
City Manager Steffey briefly reviewed his first City Manager report for the 
Council. With new transitions in the City, things have been very busy. 
There are very many projects that are going on. Discussion was also held 
on the Bayfront Lane project and responsibility of improvements. 

   
D. Public Works 

 
 City Manager / Public Works Director Chance Steffey reviewed his 

Report for the Council.   
 

Tom Imhoff requested an update on the Well Pump Test. Director Steffey 
reviewed information provided by the engineers. 
Councilor McCall complemented Direct Steffey on the Parks Town Hall 
Meeting.  

 
 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
  
          A. Administrative Committee 
 

Councilor Baker stated Administrative Committee did not meet. 
 
     
          B. Community Development 

  Councilor Krostag stated Community Development did not meet.  



Page 3 of 6 Bay City Council Meeting 12/10/2019 

    

         C. Emergency Management Committee 
 
Councilor Wright reviewed the Emergency Management Committee 
Workshop. Councilor Wright stated a meeting will be held on January 6, 
2020 6:00 p.m. at City Hall. Helen stated Chief Griffith will taking her out 
around the City to find more Block Captains. They are also conducting a 
blanket drive. Councilor Wright has contacted local motels and 
businesses for additional blankets to be donated. Discussion was held. 

Chief Griffith stated the Fire Department will be delivering candy canes 
on December 15, 2019. They will hand out cards asking for blankets and 
block captains. They will also be looking for a commercial vacuum to 
seal the blankets. 

    
D. Fire Committee 
 
Pat Vining Chair of the Fire Committee reviewed the Fire Committee 
Workshop. George Duncal will be attending the next workshop on 
December 16, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. to offer advice on Rural Fire Districts and 
terminology for a Tax Levy. Pat is hoping to make a presentation by April. 
Discussion was held. 

 

5. MINUTES 
 
11/11/2019 Council Workshop, 11/12/2019 Regular Council Meeting and 
11/22/2019 Special Council Meeting.  

  The minutes of the 11/11/2019 Council Workshop were unavailable. 
Councilor McCall made a motion to table the minutes until the January 
meeting, second by Councilor Baker. Motion carried 5-0. 

  Councilor McCall made a request to add items to the unfinished business 
on the agenda for the 11/12/2019 regular meeting. There was a second 
request to add comments to the minutes of 11/22/2019 Special Council 
Meeting. 
 
Motion by Councilor McCall for corrections to amend minutes and second 
by Councilor Rondeau to approve corrections. Motion carried 5-0. 

  Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Krostag to approve 
minutes as corrected. Motion carried 5-0 
 

6. TREASURER’S REPORT 
 



Page 4 of 6 Bay City Council Meeting 12/10/2019 

Deputy Recorder Cherry stated the report was in the packet and will filed 
the report for audit.  

7. BILLS AGAINST THE CITY 
 
Bills were reviewed prior to the Council workshop.   
 
Motion by Councilor Rondeau and second by Councilor Wright to approve 
the bills in the amount of $56,736.69 Motion carried 5-0. Councilor 
Rondeau recommended the public attend the Workshop to review bills to 
the City previous to Regular Council Workshop. 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
A. Reader Board / Fire Station   

Councilor McCall reviewed the Reader Board information. Discussion was 
held. 

   
B. Bay City Water System  

 Director Steffey stated City Attorney Munsell was going to give a 
presentation, but has been very busy with other activities. Director Steffey 
requested this to be tabled until further notice. 
   

C. Internet Infrastructure Proposal / Computer Support & Services  

 Request from Director Steffey to table until more information is available. 

 D. John Gettman Award Committee - Committee has not met. 

 E. NLC Service Line Warranty Program - request from Mayor Kruebbe to   
table this item. 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Planning Commission Member Recommendation 

Planning Commission Chair Tom Imhoff introduced Rick Knode to the 
City Council. 
 

Motion by Councilor McCall second by Councilor Krostag to approve Rick 
Knode to the Planning Commission. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

Motion by Councilor Krostag second by Councilor Rondeau to approve Dan 
Overholser to the Planning Commission. Motion carried 5-0. 

   
B. Resolution No. 19-26 Interfund Loan 
 



Page 5 of 6 Bay City Council Meeting 12/10/2019 

Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor  Krostag to advertise 
Resolution No. 19-26 for an Interfund Loan for a meeting scheduled on 
December 23, 2019 at 5:30 p.m.    
 

   Motion carried 5-0. 
   

C. Resolution No. 19-27 Reallocation of General Funds for Professional 
Services 
 
Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Baker to advertise 
Resolution No.19-27 for the Reallocation of General Funds for 
Professional Services for a meeting scheduled on December 23, 2019 at  
5:30 p.m. 

 
Motion carried 5-0. 

 
 D. City Recorder / Hiring an Exempt Employee 
 
 City Manager Steffey requested City Council to approve his ability to hire 

a City Recorder. Discussion was held. 
Motion Councilor Baker and second by Councilor McCall to allow City 
Manager to take the position of soliciting and hiring a City Recorder with 
consultation of the City Attorney and giving authority at the City Manager. 
 

Motion carried 5-0 
 
E. Habitat for Humanity / SDC Exemption Request. 
  
Cami Aufdermauer from Habitat for Humanity requested a System  
Development Charges (SDC) Exemption Request for a possible new 
development in the City of Bay City. Discussion was held at length. 
Consensus was that the community would need to be involved with this 
decision. Tom Imhoff suggested this be tabled until the community can be 
involved. Councilor McCall suggested that information could be shared in 
the February newsletter. 

   
10. MAYOR’S PRESENTATION 

 
A. Mayor Kruebbe 

 Mayor Kruebbe made a presentation on ShakeAlert: An Earthquake Early 
Warning System for the West Coast of the United States. Discussion was 
held. Chief Griffith suggested this might be a project for Tillamook County 
and Gordon McGraw so that all that Emergency Management is involved. 
Mayor Kruebbe stated he would do more research. 

11. CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION  



Page 6 of 6 Bay City Council Meeting 12/10/2019 

 A. Council McCall shared a copy of the Tillamook County TLT ordinance  

that was recently adopted and how projects would be scored for TLT funds. 
Councilor McCall stated the Ordinance will be available on the Tillamook 
County website. 

B. Councilor Wright shared that Rob Trost had passed away. She 
suggested reaching out to Rob Trost Realty in regards to property located 
within the City limits. Councilor McCall suggested putting it on the agenda. 

C. Councilor Baker noted that Director Steffey is working on new streets 
signs and stop signs for the City. Thank you Chance! 

D. Jodi Daily asked if anyone information in the Headlight Herald Fencepost 
to please email her before Saturdays. 

 

12.   CITY ATTORNEY PRESENTATION 
 Attorney Monson was not in attendance.  
  

13.  AJOURNMENT 
 Motion by Councilor Baker and second by Councilor Wright to adjourn  
  the meeting at 7:50 p.m. Motion carried 5-0. 

 

 

       __________________________ 
       Christopher Kruebbe, Mayor 

 

________________________ 
Angie Cherry, Deputy City Recorder 



Page 1 of 1 Bay City Special City Council Meeting 12/23/2019 

CITY COUNCILSPECIAL MEETING  
DECEMBER 23, 2019 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/WELCOME – 5:34 P.M. 
============================================  
Mayor Christopher Kruebbe called the Bay City Council meeting to order at 5:34 
p.m. The following Council members were present: David McCall, Kathy Baker, 
Helen Wright, Melissa Rondeau. 
 
Others in attendance were City Manager / Public Works Director Chance Steffey 
and Deputy City Recorder Angie Cherry.  
  
 
1. PUBLIC HEARING A Special Meeting to consider: 

A. Resolution 19-26 -  A Resolution Authorizing a Loan from the Street 
Trust Fund to the General Fund, Establishing Terms of Repayment, 
Directing Fund Allocation of One-Half of PUD Franchise Fee Payments 
and Adopting a Supplemental Budget and Making Appropriations for 
Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
 
B. Resolution 19-27 – A Resolution Providing for Budget 
Appropriations Changes and Adopting a Supplemental Budget for Fiscal 
Year 2019-2020. 
  
Motion to reschedule meeting until January 6, 2020 at 5:30 p.m. for 
Resolution 19-29 and Resolution 19-27  by Councilor Baker, second by 
Councilor McCall. Motion carried 4-0. 

2. AJOURNMENT 
Motion by Councilor McCall and second by Councilor Baker to adjourn the       
meeting at 5:40 p.m. Motion carried 4-0. 

 

 

       __________________________ 
       Christopher Kruebbe, Mayor 

 

________________________ 
Angie Cherry, Deputy City Recorder 



Memorandum 

 

To: Mayor Kruebbe and Bay City Council 

From: Linda Downey 

Date: 2/7/2020 

Re: Minutes  

The minutes of the 12/23/2019 Special Council Meeting, 01/13/2020 Council 

Workshop and 01/14/2020 Council Meeting will be available by Monday and 

emailed to you. I will update website packet when the minutes are completed. 

Sorry for the delay.  

  



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For General Fund (100)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 1

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Non-Departmental Revenues

2,596.870.00 181,805.00 188,706.26100-00-4005   Property Taxes - Current (3.80%)$ $ $ $

194.900.00 7,000.00 5,960.87100-00-4010   Property Taxes - Prior Years 14.84%

2,367.560.00 20,000.00 13,763.37100-00-4105   Liquor Tax 31.18%

170.720.00 1,300.00 985.87100-00-4110   Cigarette Tax 24.16%

10.000.00 10.00 10.00100-00-4205   Licenses 0.00%

191.250.00 500.00 289.00100-00-4210   Dog Licenses/Fines 42.20%

368.570.00 40,000.00 21,469.64100-00-4305   Franchise Fees 46.33%

0.000.00 15,000.00 9,830.10100-00-4510   State Revenue Sharing 34.47%

0.000.00 1,200.00 650.00100-00-4605   Hall Rental 45.83%

2,885.410.00 13,000.00 14,354.34100-00-4650   Transient Lodging Tax (10.42%)

146.110.00 1,000.00 936.39100-00-4800   Miscellaneous 6.36%

0.000.00 3,000.00 4,516.67100-00-4805   Earnings on Investments (50.56%)

49.500.00 100.00 49.50100-00-4850   Code Enforcement Fines 50.50%

0.000.00 225,000.00 305,014.26100-00-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (35.56%)

(11.32%)508,915.000.00 8,980.89 566,536.27Total Non-Departmental Revenues

Fire Revenues

1,517.950.00 106,422.00 110,304.92100-30-4005   Property Taxes - Current (3.65%)

94.050.00 1,500.00 2,800.12100-30-4010   Property Taxes - Prior Years (86.67%)

0.000.00 1,500.00 1,500.00100-30-4520   Intergovernmental Agreements 0.00%

0.000.00 1,000.00 45.20100-30-4800   Miscellaneous 95.48%

0.000.00 1,100.00 1,630.91100-30-4805   Earnings on Investments (48.26%)

1,479.650.00 100,056.00 95,114.82100-30-4930   Transfers In 4.94%

0.000.00 115,224.00 129,319.75100-30-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (12.23%)

(4.26%)326,802.000.00 3,091.65 340,715.72Total Fire Revenues

Recreation Revenues

0.000.00 0.00 140.25100-50-4430   Local Grants 0.00%

0.000.00 6,000.00 4,982.00100-50-4630   Park Camping 16.97%

14.63%6,000.000.00 0.00 5,122.25Total Recreation Revenues

Transient Lodging Tax Revenues

6,732.730.00 38,000.00 33,493.79100-60-4650   Transient Lodging Tax 11.86%

0.000.00 52,000.00 52,787.83100-60-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (1.52%)

4.13%90,000.000.00 6,732.73 86,281.62Total Transient Lodging Tax Revenues

Planning Revenues

900.000.00 5,500.00 2,425.00100-70-4310   Planning Fees 55.91%

0.000.00 4,000.00 1,700.00100-70-4315   Land Use Fees 57.50%

0.000.00 0.00 1,000.00100-70-4420   State Grants 0.00%

46.05%9,500.000.00 900.00 5,125.00Total Planning Revenues

(6.65%)941,217.000.00 19,705.27 1,003,780.86Total General Fund Revenues $ $ $ $



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For General Fund (100)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 2

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Expenditures

Administration Expenditures

3,699.400.00 75,309.00 34,338.57100-10-5105   Full-Time Employees - Regular 54.40%$ $ $ $

283.040.00 5,800.00 2,626.98100-10-5205   Employer FICA Taxes 54.71%

3.670.00 1,200.00 34.38100-10-5210   Unemployment Insurance 97.14%

1.480.00 1,000.00 440.10100-10-5215   Workers' Compensation Insurance 55.99%

459.310.00 13,500.00 5,648.60100-10-5305   Employer PERS Contributions 58.16%

745.210.00 24,000.00 9,888.49100-10-5405   Health Insurance 58.80%

4.750.00 350.00 69.53100-10-5415   Life Insurance 80.13%

0.000.00 100.00 0.00100-10-5420   Disability Insurance 100.00%

0.000.00 6,000.00 2,247.27100-10-6105   Office Supplies & Equipment 62.55%

0.000.00 10,000.00 369.23100-10-6305   Building Repairs & Maintenance 96.31%

0.000.00 5,000.00 2,130.00100-10-6311   Contracted Ground Maintenance 57.40%

0.000.00 3,500.00 2,399.94100-10-6405   Dues & Subscriptions 31.43%

0.000.00 2,000.00 355.78100-10-6410   Training 82.21%

0.000.00 5,500.00 1,408.69100-10-6605   Electricity 74.39%

0.000.00 3,500.00 989.17100-10-6620   Telecommunications 71.74%

0.000.00 5,000.00 4,923.66100-10-6700   Insurance 1.53%

0.000.00 1,600.00 996.37100-10-6825   Advertising/Publishing 37.73%

0.000.00 4,500.00 1,260.00100-10-6830   Janitorial Services 72.00%

0.000.00 450.00 0.00100-10-6850   Dog Licenses/Catching 100.00%

0.000.00 12,000.00 1,960.66100-10-6860   Computers/Software/Services 83.66%

0.000.00 10,000.00 5,432.33100-10-6870   Pre-Hazard Preparedness 45.68%

0.000.00 500.00 50.05100-10-6880   Ordinance Enforcement 89.99%

0.000.00 10,000.00 5,495.84100-10-6990   Other Miscellaneous Expenses 45.04%

0.000.00 10,000.00 0.00100-10-8700   Community Hall/Office 100.00%

60.60%210,809.000.00 5,196.86 83,065.64Total Administration Expenditures

Police Expenditures

0.000.00 50,000.00 11,880.00100-20-6820   Police Patrol/Public Protection 76.24%

0.000.00 500.00 0.00100-20-6880   Ordinance Enforcement 100.00%

76.48%50,500.000.00 0.00 11,880.00Total Police Expenditures

Fire Expenditures

3,556.450.00 5,300.00 24,547.56100-30-5105   Full-Time Employees - Regular (363.16%)

2,322.500.00 39,600.00 17,235.00100-30-5115   Part-Time Employees 56.48%

0.000.00 42,000.00 0.00100-30-5118   Volunteer Stipends 100.00%

449.780.00 6,700.00 3,196.64100-30-5205   Employer FICA Taxes 52.29%

5.930.00 1,450.00 42.14100-30-5210   Unemployment Insurance 97.09%

4.930.00 1,500.00 1,365.96100-30-5215   Workers' Compensation Insurance 8.94%

701.280.00 9,000.00 5,018.62100-30-5305   Employer PERS Contributions 44.24%

0.000.00 13,800.00 357.76100-30-5405   Health Insurance 97.41%

3.000.00 400.00 43.53100-30-5415   Life Insurance 89.12%

0.000.00 10,000.00 8,033.36100-30-5420   Disability Insurance 19.67%

0.000.00 4,200.00 0.00100-30-5425   Health Reviews 100.00%

0.000.00 10,000.00 5,601.77100-30-6105   Office Supplies & Equipment 43.98%

0.000.00 1,500.00 487.02100-30-6115   First Aid Supplies 67.53%

0.000.00 3,000.00 392.48100-30-6140   Fuel/Lubes/Etc. 86.92%



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For General Fund (100)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 3

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

0.000.00 1,200.00 1,200.00100-30-6205   Accounting & Auditing 0.00%

0.000.00 1,800.00 0.00100-30-6220   Legal Fees 100.00%

0.000.00 13,000.00 1,480.19100-30-6305   Building Repairs & Maintenance 88.61%

0.000.00 3,000.00 3,203.05100-30-6340   Radios & Radio Repair (6.77%)

0.000.00 16,000.00 9,095.97100-30-6345   Operational Equipment & Repairs 43.15%

0.000.00 16,000.00 11,239.12100-30-6350   Personal Protective Equipment 29.76%

0.000.00 2,000.00 975.00100-30-6405   Dues & Subscriptions 51.25%

0.000.00 8,000.00 5,696.03100-30-6410   Training 28.80%

0.000.00 4,200.00 1,257.28100-30-6605   Electricity 70.06%

0.000.00 3,000.00 605.18100-30-6620   Telecommunications 79.83%

0.000.00 13,000.00 11,107.67100-30-6700   Insurance 14.56%

0.000.00 300.00 147.34100-30-6840   Printing & Copying 50.89%

0.000.00 3,400.00 1,705.67100-30-6860   Computers/Software/Services 49.83%

0.000.00 3,000.00 1,891.19100-30-6990   Other Miscellaneous Expenses 36.96%

0.000.00 45,000.00 0.00100-30-9400   Transfer to Capital Projects Funds 100.00%

0.000.00 20,452.00 0.00100-30-9800   Contingency 100.00%

0.000.00 25,000.00 0.00100-30-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

64.53%326,802.000.00 7,043.87 115,925.53Total Fire Expenditures

Recreation Expenditures

438.300.00 6,500.00 2,447.75100-50-5105   Full-Time Employees - Regular 62.34%

33.540.00 500.00 187.35100-50-5205   Employer FICA Taxes 62.53%

0.430.00 150.00 2.40100-50-5210   Unemployment Insurance 98.40%

0.260.00 1,000.00 414.90100-50-5215   Workers' Compensation Insurance 58.51%

47.080.00 1,000.00 232.79100-50-5305   Employer PERS Contributions 76.72%

180.780.00 4,000.00 1,877.52100-50-5405   Health Insurance 53.06%

0.400.00 40.00 2.05100-50-5415   Life Insurance 94.88%

0.000.00 300.00 168.07100-50-6145   Tourism 43.98%

0.000.00 3,000.00 1,235.90100-50-6190   Other Supplies 58.80%

0.000.00 20,000.00 2,730.03100-50-6310   Grounds Maintenance 86.35%

0.000.00 12,300.00 6,150.00100-50-6311   Contracted Ground Maintenance 50.00%

0.000.00 1,700.00 1,281.76100-50-6605   Electricity 24.60%

0.000.00 10,000.00 0.00100-50-8200   Buildings & Equipment 100.00%

0.000.00 8,000.00 283.14100-50-8300   Improvements Other Than Buildings 96.46%

75.16%68,490.000.00 700.79 17,013.66Total Recreation Expenditures

Transient Lodging Tax Expenditures

0.000.00 90,000.00 7,332.75100-60-6145   Tourism 91.85%

91.85%90,000.000.00 0.00 7,332.75Total Transient Lodging Tax Expenditures

Planning Expenditures

0.000.00 1,500.00 768.88100-70-6215   Engineering Fees 48.74%

0.000.00 2,000.00 0.00100-70-6220   Legal Fees 100.00%

0.000.00 38,000.00 10,121.99100-70-6240   Comprehensive Planning 73.36%

0.000.00 1,000.00 4,121.88100-70-6290   Other Professional Fees (312.19%)

0.000.00 500.00 0.00100-70-6865   Building Inspector/Inspections 100.00%

65.09%43,000.000.00 0.00 15,012.75Total Planning Expenditures



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For General Fund (100)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 4

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

General Service Expenditures

0.000.00 4,000.00 3,050.00100-90-6205   Accounting & Auditing 23.75%

0.000.00 39,760.00 46,031.66100-90-6220   Legal Fees (15.77%)

0.000.00 6,500.00 2,942.48100-90-6805   Mayor 54.73%

0.000.00 300.00 0.00100-90-6910   Fee Refunds 100.00%

0.000.00 1,000.00 520.00100-90-6990   Other Miscellaneous Expenses 48.00%

1,479.650.00 100,056.00 95,114.82100-90-9000   Transfers Out 4.94%

2.61%151,616.000.00 1,479.65 147,658.96Total General Service Expenditures

57.73%941,217.000.00 14,421.17 397,889.29Total General Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 5,284.10 0.00 605,891.57 0.00%$ $ $ $General Fund Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Street and Road Fund (200)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 5

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Non-Departmental Revenues

8,344.380.00 100,000.00 58,100.82200-00-4115   State Highway Tax 41.90%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 100,000.00 0.00200-00-4420   State Grants 100.00%

0.000.00 4,000.00 0.00200-00-4800   Miscellaneous 100.00%

0.000.00 1,500.00 1,766.61200-00-4805   Earnings on Investments (17.77%)

0.000.00 110,000.00 140,077.98200-00-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (27.34%)

36.63%315,500.000.00 8,344.38 199,945.41Total Non-Departmental Revenues

36.63%315,500.000.00 8,344.38 199,945.41Total Street and Road Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Non-Departmental Expenditures

3,567.750.00 42,450.00 19,211.16200-00-5105   Full-Time Employees - Regular 54.74%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 0.00 425.75200-00-5115   Part-Time Employees 0.00%

272.940.00 3,250.00 1,502.29200-00-5205   Employer FICA Taxes 53.78%

3.570.00 700.00 19.70200-00-5210   Unemployment Insurance 97.19%

1.810.00 2,800.00 2,452.42200-00-5215   Workers' Compensation Insurance 12.41%

403.020.00 6,600.00 2,535.88200-00-5305   Employer PERS Contributions 61.58%

1,366.060.00 20,200.00 7,464.77200-00-5405   Health Insurance 63.05%

3.830.00 200.00 24.41200-00-5415   Life Insurance 87.80%

0.000.00 500.00 17.47200-00-6105   Office Supplies & Equipment 96.51%

0.000.00 2,000.00 434.97200-00-6125   Shop Supplies & Small Tools 78.25%

0.000.00 2,500.00 710.09200-00-6140   Fuel/Lubes/Etc. 71.60%

0.000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00200-00-6205   Accounting & Auditing 0.00%

0.000.00 5,000.00 0.00200-00-6215   Engineering Fees 100.00%

0.000.00 1,000.00 260.00200-00-6220   Legal Fees 74.00%

0.000.00 500.00 0.00200-00-6305   Building Repairs & Maintenance 100.00%

0.000.00 20,000.00 4,766.78200-00-6315   Street Repairs & Maintenance 76.17%

0.000.00 2,000.00 3,468.72200-00-6335   Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance (73.44%)

0.000.00 500.00 157.72200-00-6350   Personal Protective Equipment 68.46%

0.000.00 20,000.00 35.00200-00-6390   Other Repairs & Maintenance 99.83%

0.000.00 1,500.00 690.13200-00-6410   Training 53.99%

0.000.00 10,000.00 4,296.94200-00-6605   Electricity 57.03%

0.000.00 3,000.00 2,477.42200-00-6700   Insurance 17.42%

0.000.00 2,000.00 101.94200-00-6860   Computers/Software/Services 94.90%

0.000.00 10,000.00 2,197.30200-00-6990   Other Miscellaneous Expenses 78.03%

0.000.00 20,000.00 0.00200-00-6995   Feasibility Studies / Projects 100.00%

0.000.00 120,000.00 10,669.34200-00-8300   Improvements Other Than Buildings 91.11%

0.000.00 2,000.00 0.00200-00-8400   Machinery & Equipment 100.00%

0.000.00 15,800.00 0.00200-00-9800   Contingency 100.00%

79.42%315,500.000.00 5,618.98 64,920.20Total Non-Departmental Expenditures

79.42%315,500.000.00 5,618.98 64,920.20Total Street and Road Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 2,725.40 0.00 135,025.21 0.00%$ $ $ $Street and Road Fund Excess of Revenues Over Expen



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Housing Rehabilitation Fund (201)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 6

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Housing Rehabilitation Revenues

0.000.00 1,500.00 1,232.48201-18-4805   Earnings on Investments 17.83%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 90,000.00 97,728.22201-18-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (8.59%)

(8.15%)91,500.000.00 0.00 98,960.70Total Housing Rehabilitation Revenues

(8.15%)91,500.000.00 0.00 98,960.70Total Housing Rehabilitation Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Housing Rehabilitation Expenditures

0.000.00 19,000.00 0.00201-18-6890   Other Administration Expenses 100.00%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 72,500.00 0.00201-18-6920   Housing Rehab Loan Disbursments 100.00%

100.00%91,500.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Housing Rehabilitation Expenditures

100.00%91,500.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Housing Rehabilitation Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 0.00 0.00 98,960.70 0.00%$ $ $ $Housing Rehabilitation Fund Excess of Revenues Over 



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Kilchis Water Bond Fund (300)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 7

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Bond Payment Revenues

(28.86)0.00 19,343.00 20,054.88300-11-4005   Property Taxes - Current (3.68%)$ $ $ $

28.860.00 1,200.00 871.21300-11-4010   Property Taxes - Prior Years 27.40%

1,882.590.00 21,000.00 28,173.34300-11-4611   Water User Charges - Capital (34.16%)

0.000.00 1,500.00 1,153.08300-11-4805   Earnings on Investments 23.13%

0.000.00 89,500.00 91,433.25300-11-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (2.16%)

(6.90%)132,543.000.00 1,882.59 141,685.76Total Bond Payment Revenues

(6.90%)132,543.000.00 1,882.59 141,685.76Total Kilchis Water Bond Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Bond Payment Expenditures

0.000.00 48,042.00 0.00300-11-7010   Principal Payments - General Obligatio 100.00%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 4,851.00 2,396.90300-11-7015   Interest Payments - General Obligation 50.59%

95.47%52,893.000.00 0.00 2,396.90Total Bond Payment Expenditures

Bond Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 79,650.00 0.00300-12-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

100.00%79,650.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Bond Reserve Expenditures

98.19%132,543.000.00 0.00 2,396.90Total Kilchis Water Bond Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 1,882.59 0.00 139,288.86 0.00%$ $ $ $Kilchis Water Bond Fund Excess of Revenues Over Exp



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Sewer Bond Fund (301)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 8

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Non-Departmental Revenues

0.000.00 700.00 0.00301-00-4805   Earnings on Investments 100.00%$ $ $ $

100.00%700.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Non-Departmental Revenues

Bond Payment Revenues

275.570.00 19,314.00 20,024.58301-11-4005   Property Taxes - Current (3.68%)

23.650.00 800.00 788.14301-11-4010   Property Taxes - Prior Years 1.48%

0.000.00 0.00 505.67301-11-4805   Earnings on Investments 0.00%

0.000.00 39,000.00 40,097.39301-11-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (2.81%)

(3.89%)59,114.000.00 299.22 61,415.78Total Bond Payment Revenues

(2.68%)59,814.000.00 299.22 61,415.78Total Sewer Bond Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Bond Payment Expenditures

0.000.00 10,376.00 0.00301-11-7010   Principal Payments - General Obligatio 100.00%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 13,550.00 0.00301-11-7015   Interest Payments - General Obligation 100.00%

0.000.00 35,888.00 0.00301-11-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

100.00%59,814.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Bond Payment Expenditures

100.00%59,814.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Sewer Bond Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 299.22 0.00 61,415.78 0.00%$ $ $ $Sewer Bond Fund Excess of Revenues Over Expenditur



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For DEQ Loan Repayment Fund (302)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 9

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Loan Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 19,500.00 21,757.50302-21-4620   Sewer User Charges (11.58%)$ $ $ $

0.000.00 175,500.00 176,013.00302-21-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (0.29%)

(1.42%)195,000.000.00 0.00 197,770.50Total Loan Reserve Revenues

Loan Revenues

4,338.000.00 25,500.00 8,761.50302-22-4620   Sewer User Charges 65.64%

65.64%25,500.000.00 4,338.00 8,761.50Total Loan Revenues

6.33%220,500.000.00 4,338.00 206,532.00Total DEQ Loan Repayment Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Loan Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 190,000.00 0.00302-21-7040   Principal Payments - Notes Payable 100.00%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 5,000.00 0.00302-21-7045   Interest Payments - Notes Payable 100.00%

100.00%195,000.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Loan Reserve Expenditures

Loan Expenditures

0.000.00 25,500.00 0.00302-22-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

100.00%25,500.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Loan Expenditures

100.00%220,500.000.00 0.00 0.00Total DEQ Loan Repayment Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 4,338.00 0.00 206,532.00 0.00%$ $ $ $DEQ Loan Repayment Fund Excess of Revenues Over E



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Street Reserve Fund (400)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 10

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 3,500.00 2,299.70400-13-4305   Franchise Fees 34.29%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 4,000.00 1,718.87400-13-4805   Earnings on Investments 57.03%

0.000.00 110,000.00 136,297.44400-13-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (23.91%)

(19.42%)117,500.000.00 0.00 140,316.01Total Reserve Revenues

Street Trust Revenues

0.000.00 4,500.00 2,875.37400-17-4805   Earnings on Investments 36.10%

5,236.930.00 0.00 5,236.93400-17-4825   Loan Payback 0.00%

0.000.00 228,000.00 228,000.73400-17-4990   Beginning Fund Balance 0.00%

(1.55%)232,500.000.00 5,236.93 236,113.03Total Street Trust Revenues

Street Maintenance Fee Revenues

10,929.200.00 50,000.00 53,518.00400-24-4320   Street Maintenance Fees (7.04%)

0.000.00 0.00 1,690.29400-24-4805   Earnings on Investments 0.00%

0.000.00 130,000.00 134,029.34400-24-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (3.10%)

(5.13%)180,000.000.00 10,929.20 189,237.63Total Street Maintenance Fee Revenues

(6.73%)530,000.000.00 16,166.13 565,666.67Total Street Reserve Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 140,000.00 3,478.13400-13-6315   Street Repairs & Maintenance 97.52%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 500.00 0.00400-13-6910   Fee Refunds 100.00%

0.000.00 37,000.00 0.00400-13-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

98.04%177,500.000.00 0.00 3,478.13Total Reserve Expenditures

Street Trust Expenditures

0.000.00 232,500.00 0.00400-17-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

100.00%232,500.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Street Trust Expenditures

Street Maintenance Fee Expenditures

0.000.00 120,000.00 3,478.12400-24-6314   Street Overlay 97.10%

97.10%120,000.000.00 0.00 3,478.12Total Street Maintenance Fee Expenditures

98.69%530,000.000.00 0.00 6,956.25Total Street Reserve Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 16,166.13 0.00 558,710.42 0.00%$ $ $ $Street Reserve Fund Excess of Revenues Over Expendi



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Bay City Equipment Reserve Fund (401)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 11

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 2,500.00 1,403.78401-13-4805   Earnings on Investments 43.85%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 20,000.00 0.00401-13-4930   Transfers In 100.00%

0.000.00 120,000.00 111,312.93401-13-4990   Beginning Fund Balance 7.24%

20.90%142,500.000.00 0.00 112,716.71Total Reserve Revenues

20.90%142,500.000.00 0.00 112,716.71Total Bay City Equipment Reserve Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 130,000.00 77,916.14401-13-8400   Machinery & Equipment 40.06%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 12,500.00 0.00401-13-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

45.32%142,500.000.00 0.00 77,916.14Total Reserve Expenditures

45.32%142,500.000.00 0.00 77,916.14Total Bay City Equipment Reserve Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 0.00 0.00 34,800.57 0.00%$ $ $ $Bay City Equipment Reserve Fund Excess of Revenues 



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Fire Apparatus Reserve & Building Reserve Fund (402)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 12

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 900.00 621.75402-13-4805   Earnings on Investments 30.92%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 45,000.00 0.00402-13-4930   Transfers In 100.00%

0.000.00 48,916.00 49,302.33402-13-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (0.79%)

47.35%94,816.000.00 0.00 49,924.08Total Reserve Revenues

Building Fund Revenues

0.000.00 0.00 1,099.91402-19-4805   Earnings on Investments 0.00%

0.000.00 22,000.00 11,793.20402-19-4890   Fire Department Relocation 46.39%

0.000.00 84,000.00 87,217.01402-19-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (3.83%)

5.56%106,000.000.00 0.00 100,110.12Total Building Fund Revenues

25.29%200,816.000.00 0.00 150,034.20Total Fire Apparatus Reserve & Building Reserve Fun $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 24,220.00 24,219.78402-13-7050   Capital Lease Payments 0.00%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 19,100.00 0.00402-13-8200   Equipment 100.00%

0.000.00 51,496.00 0.00402-13-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

74.46%94,816.000.00 0.00 24,219.78Total Reserve Expenditures

Building Fund Expenditures

0.000.00 106,000.00 0.00402-19-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

100.00%106,000.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Building Fund Expenditures

87.94%200,816.000.00 0.00 24,219.78Total Fire Apparatus Reserve & Building Reserve Fun $ $ $ $

0.00 0.00 0.00 125,814.42 0.00%$ $ $ $Fire Apparatus Reserve & Building Reserve Fund Exces



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Park & Recreation Reserve Fund (404)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 13

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 500.00 207.89404-13-4805   Earnings on Investments 58.42%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 16,000.00 16,484.00404-13-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (3.03%)

(1.16%)16,500.000.00 0.00 16,691.89Total Reserve Revenues

(1.16%)16,500.000.00 0.00 16,691.89Total Park & Recreation Reserve Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 5,000.00 0.00404-13-8300   Improvements Other Than Buildings 100.00%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 5,000.00 0.00404-13-8310   Buildings / Structures 100.00%

0.000.00 6,500.00 0.00404-13-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

100.00%16,500.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Reserve Expenditures

100.00%16,500.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Park & Recreation Reserve Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 0.00 0.00 16,691.89 0.00%$ $ $ $Park & Recreation Reserve Fund Excess of Revenues O



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Footpaths and Bicycle Trails Reserve (405)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 14

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Reserve Revenues

84.280.00 800.00 586.88405-13-4115   State Highway Tax 26.64%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 150.00 86.23405-13-4805   Earnings on Investments 42.51%

0.000.00 6,600.00 6,837.24405-13-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (3.59%)

0.53%7,550.000.00 84.28 7,510.35Total Reserve Revenues

0.53%7,550.000.00 84.28 7,510.35Total Footpaths and Bicycle Trails Reserve Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 7,550.00 0.00405-13-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%$ $ $ $

100.00%7,550.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Reserve Expenditures

100.00%7,550.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Footpaths and Bicycle Trails Reserve Expenditu $ $ $ $

0.00 84.28 0.00 7,510.35 0.00%$ $ $ $Footpaths and Bicycle Trails Reserve Excess of Revenu



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Bay City Water Fund (600)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 15

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Non-Departmental Revenues

36,348.560.00 350,000.00 226,258.43600-00-4610   Water User Charges 35.35%$ $ $ $

275.850.00 4,000.00 2,639.24600-00-4615   Water Deposits 34.02%

0.000.00 1,500.00 10,131.83600-00-4800   Miscellaneous (575.46%)

0.000.00 6,000.00 3,163.39600-00-4805   Earnings on Investments 47.28%

0.000.00 2,500.00 0.00600-00-4815   Sale of Pipe/Supplies 100.00%

0.000.00 175,000.00 250,838.85600-00-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (43.34%)

8.53%539,000.000.00 36,624.41 493,031.74Total Non-Departmental Revenues

Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 15,405.00 15,113.99600-13-4710   SDC - Improvement Fees 1.89%

0.000.00 8,295.00 8,099.01600-13-4720   SDC - Reimbursement Fees 2.36%

0.000.00 7,500.00 2,716.38600-13-4805   Earnings on Investments 63.78%

0.000.00 195,000.00 215,392.85600-13-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (10.46%)

(6.69%)226,200.000.00 0.00 241,322.23Total Reserve Revenues

4.03%765,200.000.00 36,624.41 734,353.97Total Bay City Water Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Non-Departmental Expenditures

10,258.330.00 118,200.00 68,276.76600-00-5105   Full-Time Employees - Regular 42.24%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 0.00 1,689.90600-00-5115   Part-Time Employees 0.00%

784.650.00 9,100.00 5,351.95600-00-5205   Employer FICA Taxes 41.19%

10.240.00 1,900.00 69.84600-00-5210   Unemployment Insurance 96.32%

5.080.00 3,000.00 2,554.80600-00-5215   Workers' Compensation Insurance 14.84%

1,337.110.00 18,600.00 9,702.96600-00-5305   Employer PERS Contributions 47.83%

3,548.390.00 56,000.00 25,687.12600-00-5405   Health Insurance 54.13%

17.610.00 600.00 129.24600-00-5415   Life Insurance 78.46%

0.000.00 3,250.00 1,705.59600-00-6105   Office Supplies & Equipment 47.52%

0.000.00 4,000.00 837.77600-00-6125   Shop Supplies & Small Tools 79.06%

0.000.00 40,000.00 1,694.77600-00-6130   Customer Meters & Supplies 95.76%

0.000.00 4,000.00 1,199.99600-00-6140   Fuel/Lubes/Etc. 70.00%

0.000.00 1,000.00 0.00600-00-6190   Other Supplies 100.00%

0.000.00 2,500.00 2,000.00600-00-6205   Accounting & Auditing 20.00%

0.000.00 25,000.00 237.50600-00-6215   Engineering Fees 99.05%

0.000.00 5,000.00 500.00600-00-6220   Legal Fees 90.00%

0.000.00 1,000.00 402.50600-00-6225   Laboratory Fees 59.75%

0.000.00 5,000.00 503.58600-00-6305   Building Repairs & Maintenance 89.93%

0.000.00 1,800.00 900.00600-00-6311   Contracted Ground Maintenance 50.00%

0.000.00 10,000.00 2,475.20600-00-6325   Utility System Repairs 75.25%

0.000.00 5,000.00 3,527.02600-00-6335   Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 29.46%

0.000.00 10,000.00 738.95600-00-6345   Operational Equipment & Repairs 92.61%

0.000.00 750.00 335.68600-00-6350   Personal Protective Equipment 55.24%

0.000.00 5,000.00 1,503.19600-00-6410   Training 69.94%

0.000.00 750.00 233.58600-00-6605   Electricity 68.86%

0.000.00 3,500.00 1,591.53600-00-6620   Telecommunications 54.53%



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Bay City Water Fund (600)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 16

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

0.000.00 7,500.00 6,977.40600-00-6700   Insurance 6.97%

0.000.00 600.00 226.67600-00-6830   Janitorial Services 62.22%

0.000.00 7,500.00 4,676.42600-00-6860   Computers/Software/Services 37.65%

0.000.00 1,000.00 175.70600-00-6905   Deposit Refunds 82.43%

0.000.00 100.00 0.00600-00-6910   Fee Refunds 100.00%

0.000.00 15,000.00 6,659.12600-00-6990   Other Miscellaneous Expenses 55.61%

0.000.00 20,000.00 0.00600-00-8200   Buildings & Structures 100.00%

0.000.00 10,000.00 0.00600-00-9400   Transfer to Capital Projects Funds 100.00%

0.000.00 135,739.00 0.00600-00-9500   Transfer to Enterprise Funds 100.00%

0.000.00 6,611.00 0.00600-00-9800   Contingency 100.00%

71.69%539,000.000.00 15,961.41 152,564.73Total Non-Departmental Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 7,900.00 0.00600-13-6910   Fee Refunds 100.00%

0.000.00 200,000.00 222.50600-13-8800   Utility System 99.89%

0.000.00 18,300.00 0.00600-13-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

99.90%226,200.000.00 0.00 222.50Total Reserve Expenditures

80.03%765,200.000.00 15,961.41 152,787.23Total Bay City Water Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 20,663.00 0.00 581,566.74 0.00%$ $ $ $Bay City Water Fund Excess of Revenues Over Expendi



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Kilchis Water Fund (601)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 17

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Non-Departmental Revenues

22,481.210.00 261,481.00 133,817.99601-00-4610   Water User Charges 48.82%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 1,500.00 11,977.25601-00-4800   Miscellaneous (698.48%)

0.000.00 6,000.00 1,358.06601-00-4805   Earnings on Investments 77.37%

0.000.00 135,739.00 0.00601-00-4930   Transfers In 100.00%

0.000.00 50,000.00 107,687.00601-00-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (115.37%)

43.96%454,720.000.00 22,481.21 254,840.30Total Non-Departmental Revenues

Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 40,000.00 0.00601-13-4400   Grant Revenue 100.00%

0.000.00 3,500.00 6,588.52601-13-4805   Earnings on Investments (88.24%)

0.000.00 15,000.00 0.00601-13-4930   Transfers In 100.00%

0.000.00 510,000.00 522,431.34601-13-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (2.44%)

6.94%568,500.000.00 0.00 529,019.86Total Reserve Revenues

23.39%1,023,220.000.00 22,481.21 783,860.16Total Kilchis Water Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Non-Departmental Expenditures

7,816.190.00 87,400.00 51,408.31601-00-5105   Full-Time Employees - Regular 41.18%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 0.00 1,480.30601-00-5115   Part-Time Employees 0.00%

597.960.00 6,700.00 4,046.17601-00-5205   Employer FICA Taxes 39.61%

7.840.00 200.00 53.07601-00-5210   Unemployment Insurance 73.47%

3.660.00 3,200.00 2,544.40601-00-5215   Workers' Compensation Insurance 20.49%

977.340.00 14,000.00 7,210.18601-00-5305   Employer PERS Contributions 48.50%

2,696.380.00 38,100.00 19,378.28601-00-5405   Health Insurance 49.14%

10.220.00 450.00 79.01601-00-5415   Life Insurance 82.44%

0.000.00 2,000.00 650.92601-00-6105   Office Supplies & Equipment 67.45%

0.000.00 5,000.00 902.10601-00-6125   Shop Supplies & Small Tools 81.96%

0.000.00 16,000.00 7,927.73601-00-6135   Chemical/Lab Supplies 50.45%

0.000.00 3,500.00 767.29601-00-6140   Fuel/Lubes/Etc. 78.08%

0.000.00 2,500.00 2,000.00601-00-6205   Accounting & Auditing 20.00%

0.000.00 10,000.00 0.00601-00-6215   Engineering Fees 100.00%

0.000.00 5,000.00 640.00601-00-6220   Legal Fees 87.20%

0.000.00 1,500.00 502.50601-00-6225   Laboratory Fees 66.50%

0.000.00 10,000.00 4,999.54601-00-6305   Building Repairs & Maintenance 50.00%

0.000.00 40,000.00 3,990.97601-00-6325   Utility System Repairs 90.02%

0.000.00 5,000.00 3,527.08601-00-6335   Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 29.46%

0.000.00 15,000.00 11,747.16601-00-6345   Operational Equipment & Repairs 21.69%

0.000.00 1,000.00 358.15601-00-6350   Personal Protective Equipment 64.19%

0.000.00 5,000.00 1,503.18601-00-6410   Training 69.94%

0.000.00 26,000.00 11,634.72601-00-6605   Electricity 55.25%

0.000.00 4,200.00 1,349.41601-00-6620   Telecommunications 67.87%

0.000.00 7,800.00 7,277.40601-00-6700   Insurance 6.70%

0.000.00 600.00 226.67601-00-6830   Janitorial Services 62.22%

0.000.00 5,000.00 1,527.58601-00-6860   Computers/Software/Services 69.45%



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Kilchis Water Fund (601)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 18

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

0.000.00 20,000.00 7,086.31601-00-6990   Other Miscellaneous Expenses 64.57%

0.000.00 15,000.00 0.00601-00-8200   Buildings & Structures 100.00%

0.000.00 10,000.00 1,608.12601-00-8400   Machinery & Equipment 83.92%

0.000.00 5,000.00 0.00601-00-8700   Office Equipment 100.00%

0.000.00 50,000.00 0.00601-00-8800   Utility System 100.00%

0.000.00 20,000.00 0.00601-00-9000   Transfers Out 100.00%

0.000.00 19,570.00 0.00601-00-9800   Contingency 100.00%

65.60%454,720.000.00 12,109.59 156,426.55Total Non-Departmental Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 20,000.00 0.00601-13-6990   Other Miscellaneous Expenses 100.00%

0.000.00 50,000.00 35,904.35601-13-8000   Capital Outlay 28.19%

0.000.00 15,000.00 0.00601-13-8200   Equipment 100.00%

0.000.00 5,000.00 0.00601-13-8400   Machinery & Equipment 100.00%

0.000.00 120,000.00 7,480.00601-13-8800   Utility System 93.77%

0.000.00 358,500.00 0.00601-13-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

92.37%568,500.000.00 0.00 43,384.35Total Reserve Expenditures

80.47%1,023,220.000.00 12,109.59 199,810.90Total Kilchis Water Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 10,371.62 0.00 584,049.26 0.00%$ $ $ $Kilchis Water Fund Excess of Revenues Over Expendit



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Bay City Sewer Fund (602)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 19

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Revenues

Non-Departmental Revenues

0.000.00 165,000.00 0.00602-00-4420   State Grants 100.00%$ $ $ $

47,920.400.00 375,000.00 253,920.59602-00-4620   Sewer User Charges 32.29%

388.800.00 4,000.00 3,912.41602-00-4625   Sewer Deposits 2.19%

392.000.00 5,000.00 2,649.98602-00-4800   Miscellaneous 47.00%

0.000.00 7,500.00 5,925.30602-00-4805   Earnings on Investments 21.00%

20,100.780.00 0.00 85,930.17602-00-4850   Code Enforcement Fines 0.00%

0.000.00 275,500.00 293,828.90602-00-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (6.65%)

22.34%832,000.000.00 68,801.98 646,167.35Total Non-Departmental Revenues

Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 20,440.00 47,675.46602-14-4710   SDC - Improvement Fees (133.25%)

0.000.00 2,270.00 4,830.54602-14-4720   SDC - Reimbursement Fees (112.80%)

0.000.00 14,000.00 10,213.29602-14-4805   Earnings on Investments 27.05%

0.000.00 804,500.00 809,855.21602-14-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (0.67%)

(3.73%)841,210.000.00 0.00 872,574.50Total Reserve Revenues

Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 1,250.00 1,023.07602-15-4805   Earnings on Investments 18.15%

0.000.00 10,000.00 0.00602-15-4930   Transfers In 100.00%

0.000.00 80,750.00 81,124.13602-15-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (0.46%)

10.71%92,000.000.00 0.00 82,147.20Total Reserve Revenues

Reserve Revenues

0.000.00 1,000.00 755.14602-16-4805   Earnings on Investments 24.49%

0.000.00 5,000.00 0.00602-16-4930   Transfers In 100.00%

0.000.00 58,500.00 59,879.19602-16-4990   Beginning Fund Balance (2.36%)

5.99%64,500.000.00 0.00 60,634.33Total Reserve Revenues

9.19%1,829,710.000.00 68,801.98 1,661,523.38Total Bay City Sewer Fund Revenues $ $ $ $

Expenditures

Non-Departmental Expenditures

15,820.510.00 177,300.00 85,806.44602-00-5105   Full-Time Employees - Regular 51.60%$ $ $ $

0.000.00 0.00 4,919.05602-00-5115   Part-Time Employees 0.00%

1,210.320.00 13,600.00 6,940.76602-00-5205   Employer FICA Taxes 48.97%

15.840.00 2,800.00 90.58602-00-5210   Unemployment Insurance 96.77%

7.700.00 4,100.00 4,205.78602-00-5215   Workers' Compensation Insurance (2.58%)

1,939.410.00 27,500.00 12,082.16602-00-5305   Employer PERS Contributions 56.06%

6,221.540.00 75,200.00 35,538.90602-00-5405   Health Insurance 52.74%

23.780.00 800.00 150.42602-00-5415   Life Insurance 81.20%

0.000.00 3,500.00 1,723.46602-00-6105   Office Supplies & Equipment 50.76%

0.000.00 4,000.00 1,471.03602-00-6125   Shop Supplies & Small Tools 63.22%

0.000.00 12,500.00 7,157.29602-00-6135   Chemical/Lab Supplies 42.74%

0.000.00 4,000.00 1,144.22602-00-6140   Fuel/Lubes/Etc. 71.39%

0.000.00 1,000.00 0.00602-00-6190   Other Supplies 100.00%



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For Bay City Sewer Fund (602)

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 20

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

0.000.00 2,500.00 2,000.00602-00-6205   Accounting & Auditing 20.00%

0.000.00 10,000.00 0.00602-00-6215   Engineering Fees 100.00%

0.000.00 5,000.00 500.00602-00-6220   Legal Fees 90.00%

0.000.00 1,000.00 0.00602-00-6225   Laboratory Fees 100.00%

0.000.00 10,000.00 1,117.58602-00-6305   Building Repairs & Maintenance 88.82%

0.000.00 50,000.00 1,138.36602-00-6325   Utility System Repairs 97.72%

0.000.00 5,000.00 3,527.06602-00-6335   Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 29.46%

0.000.00 35,000.00 23,364.92602-00-6345   Operational Equipment & Repairs 33.24%

0.000.00 1,000.00 621.36602-00-6350   Personal Protective Equipment 37.86%

0.000.00 5,000.00 1,504.21602-00-6410   Training 69.92%

0.000.00 30,000.00 12,389.89602-00-6605   Electricity 58.70%

0.000.00 3,800.00 1,471.50602-00-6620   Telecommunications 61.28%

0.000.00 8,000.00 7,477.40602-00-6700   Insurance 6.53%

0.000.00 600.00 226.66602-00-6830   Janitorial Services 62.22%

0.000.00 2,500.00 2,081.00602-00-6855   Permit Fees 16.76%

0.000.00 5,000.00 2,609.14602-00-6860   Computers/Software/Services 47.82%

0.000.00 1,500.00 107.25602-00-6905   Deposit Refunds 92.85%

0.000.00 100.00 0.00602-00-6910   Fee Refunds 100.00%

0.000.00 5,000.00 467.22602-00-6990   Other Miscellaneous Expenses 90.66%

0.000.00 165,000.00 37,165.10602-00-6996   Engineering Study / Special projects 77.48%

0.000.00 5,000.00 0.00602-00-8300   Improvements Other Than Buildings 100.00%

0.000.00 5,000.00 785.52602-00-8700   Office Equipment 84.29%

0.000.00 50,000.00 0.00602-00-8800   Utility System 100.00%

0.000.00 20,000.00 0.00602-00-9000   Transfers Out 100.00%

0.000.00 50,000.00 0.00602-00-9800   Contingency 100.00%

0.000.00 29,700.00 0.00602-00-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

68.78%832,000.000.00 25,239.10 259,784.26Total Non-Departmental Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 10,000.00 0.00602-14-6215   Engineering Fees 100.00%

0.000.00 50,000.00 0.00602-14-8800   Utility System 100.00%

0.000.00 781,210.00 0.00602-14-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

100.00%841,210.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Reserve Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 50,000.00 0.00602-15-8300   Improvements Other Than Buildings 100.00%

0.000.00 42,000.00 0.00602-15-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

100.00%92,000.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Reserve Expenditures

Reserve Expenditures

0.000.00 64,500.00 0.00602-16-9900   Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance 100.00%

100.00%64,500.000.00 0.00 0.00Total Reserve Expenditures

85.80%1,829,710.000.00 25,239.10 259,784.26Total Bay City Sewer Fund Expenditures $ $ $ $

0.00 43,562.88 0.00 1,401,739.12 0.00%$ $ $ $Bay City Sewer Fund Excess of Revenues Over Expendi



Account Number

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Fiscal Period 2020-7 Ending January 31, 2020

City of Bay City 503-377-2288

2/6/2020  4:32pm

Budget Actual Budget Actual

Page 21

Current Current Annual YTD

Budget %

Remaining

Revised Budget

Total Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 0.00 105,377.22 0.00 4,557,996.89 0.00%$ $ $ $

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

0.00 178,727.47 6,276,570.00 5,744,677.84 8.47%$ $ $ $

0.00 73,350.25 6,276,570.00 1,186,680.95 81.09%$ $ $ $



City of Bay City 503-377-2288

Vendor

InvoiceNumber Approved Amt Budgeted $Date YTD Balance

Council Approval Report

Page 12/10/2020  10:02am

(Council Approval Report)

Description Due Date Account NumberInvoice Amt Account Description

164 Alexin Analytical, Inc., 13035 SW Pacific Hwy., Tigard, OR, 97223

38661 $800.00 $1,000.0002/09/20 $597.50Laboratory Fees 02/12/20 600-00-6225$800.00 Laboratory Fees

38661 $800.00 $1,500.0002/09/20 $997.50Laboratory Fees 02/12/20 601-00-6225$800.00 Laboratory Fees

$1,600.00

39 Bay City Firefighters Association, PO Box 3309, Bay City, OR, 97107

2042020 $100.00 $2,000.0002/09/20 $1,025.00Dues & Subscriptions 02/12/20 100-30-6405$100.00 Dues & Subscriptions

$100.00

173 Boyd's Implement Service, 2850 Latimer Rd., Tillamook, OR, 97141

01-445 $9.00 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.98Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 600-00-6335$9.00 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

01-772 $191.25 $15,000.0002/09/20 $3,252.84Operational Equipment & Repairs 02/12/20 601-00-6345$191.25 Operational Equipment &

$200.25

180 CenturyLink, PO Box 2961, Phoenix, AZ, 85062-2961

January 2020 $119.31 $3,500.0002/09/20 $2,510.83Telecommunications 02/12/20 100-10-6620$119.31 Telecommunications

January 2020 $62.11 $3,000.0002/09/20 $2,394.82Telecommunications 02/12/20 100-30-6620$62.11 Telecommunications

January 2020 $127.77 $3,500.0002/09/20 $1,908.47Telecommunications 02/12/20 600-00-6620$127.77 Telecommunications

January 2020 $85.18 $4,200.0002/09/20 $2,850.59Telecommunications 02/12/20 601-00-6620$85.18 Telecommunications

January 2020 $127.77 $3,800.0002/09/20 $2,328.50Telecommunications 02/12/20 602-00-6620$127.77 Telecommunications

$522.14

184 Coast Printing & Stationery, 2106 Third Street, Tillamook, OR, 97141

H15285, H15490 $56.00 $3,250.0002/09/20 $1,544.41Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 600-00-6105$56.00 Office Supplies & Equipm

$56.00

334 Computer Support & Services, LLC, 110 Pacific Avenue, Tillamook, OR, 97141

10377 $30.00 $12,000.0002/09/20 $10,039.34Computers/Software/Services 02/12/20 100-10-6860$30.00 Computers/Software/Ser

10377 $15.00 $3,400.0002/09/20 $1,694.33Computers/Software/Services 02/12/20 100-30-6860$15.00 Computers/Software/Ser

10377 $35.00 $7,500.0002/09/20 $2,823.58Computers/Software/Services 02/12/20 600-00-6860$35.00 Computers/Software/Ser

10377 $35.00 $5,000.0002/09/20 $3,472.42Computers/Software/Services 02/12/20 601-00-6860$35.00 Computers/Software/Ser

10377 $88.20 $5,000.0002/09/20 $2,390.86Computers/Software/Services 02/12/20 602-00-6860$88.20 Computers/Software/Ser

$203.20

556 Debra Pohs, 6160 DewPointe Drive, Bay City, OR, 97107

January 2020 $39.10 $2,000.0002/09/20 $1,644.22Training 02/12/20 100-10-6410$39.10 Training

$39.10

781 Dick Knotts, 3435 5th Street NW, Tillamook, OR, 97141

Refund $96.64 $0.0002/09/20 $71,683.02Unapplied Cash 02/12/20 100-00-1090$96.64 Unapplied Cash

$96.64

369 Ferguson Enterprises Inc. #3011, PO Box 847411, Dallas, TX, 75284-7411

0840814 $1,232.64 $40,000.0002/09/20 $38,305.23Customer Meters & Supplies 02/12/20 600-00-6130$1,232.64 Customer Meters & Supp

0844444 $1,615.40 $40,000.0002/09/20 $38,305.23Customer Meters & Supplies 02/12/20 600-00-6130$1,615.40 Customer Meters & Supp



City of Bay City 503-377-2288

Vendor

InvoiceNumber Approved Amt Budgeted $Date YTD Balance

Council Approval Report

Page 22/10/2020  10:02am

(Council Approval Report)

Description Due Date Account NumberInvoice Amt Account Description

0845158 $807.70 $40,000.0002/09/20 $38,305.23Customer Meters & Supplies 02/12/20 600-00-6130$807.70 Customer Meters & Supp

0845160 $242.31 $40,000.0002/09/20 $38,305.23Customer Meters & Supplies 02/12/20 600-00-6130$242.31 Customer Meters & Supp

0845161 $257.31 $40,000.0002/09/20 $38,305.23Customer Meters & Supplies 02/12/20 600-00-6130$257.31 Customer Meters & Supp

$4,155.36

771 Fregonese Associates, 1525 SW Park Ave. Suite 200, Portland, OR, 97201

480-006 $900.00 $38,000.0002/09/20 $27,878.01Comprehensive Planning 02/12/20 100-70-6240$900.00 Comprehensive Planning

$900.00

80 Hallowell Logger Supply, PO Box 787, Tillamook, OR, 97141

826997 $28.00 $20,000.0002/09/20 $15,233.22Street Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 200-00-6315$28.00 Street Repairs & Mainten

$28.00

727 Impact Office Systems, 3095 Hwy 101 N, Suite D43-393, Seaside, OR, 97138

IMP683-C171-1-IN $7.60 $6,000.0002/09/20 $3,752.73Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 100-10-6105$7.60 Office Supplies & Equipm

IMP683-C171-1-IN $7.58 $10,000.0002/09/20 $4,398.23Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 100-30-6105$7.58 Office Supplies & Equipm

IMP683-C171-1-IN $7.58 $3,250.0002/09/20 $1,544.41Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 600-00-6105$7.58 Office Supplies & Equipm

IMP683-C171-1-IN $7.58 $2,000.0002/09/20 $1,349.08Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 601-00-6105$7.58 Office Supplies & Equipm

IMP683-C171-1-IN $7.58 $3,500.0002/09/20 $1,776.54Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 602-00-6105$7.58 Office Supplies & Equipm

$37.92

684 IMS Alliance, 21804 MTN Hwy E, PMB125, Spanaway, WA, 98387

19-2165 $23.00 $16,000.0002/09/20 $4,760.88Personal Protective Equipment 02/12/20 100-30-6350$23.00 Personal Protective Equi

$23.00

434 Jones & Bartlett Learning, LLC, , PO Box 417289, Boston, MA, 02241-7289

4233631  and credi $42.27 $8,000.0002/09/20 $2,303.97Training 02/12/20 100-30-6410$42.27 Training

$42.27

44 Napa Auto Parts, , PO Box 27, McMinnville, OR, 97128

January 2020 $8.44 $2,000.0002/09/20 $1,565.03Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 200-00-6125$8.44 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $34.45 $2,000.0002/09/20 ($1,468.72)Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 200-00-6335$34.45 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $15.28 $2,000.0002/09/20 ($1,468.72)Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 200-00-6335$15.28 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $8.45 $4,000.0002/09/20 $3,162.23Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 600-00-6125$8.45 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $34.46 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.98Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 600-00-6335$34.46 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $15.29 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.98Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 600-00-6335$15.29 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $24.60 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.98Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 600-00-6335$24.60 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $8.44 $5,000.0002/09/20 $4,097.90Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 601-00-6125$8.44 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $34.45 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.92Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 601-00-6335$34.45 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $24.60 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.92Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 601-00-6335$24.60 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $8.44 $4,000.0002/09/20 $2,528.97Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 602-00-6125$8.44 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $15.28 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.94Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 602-00-6335$15.28 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $34.46 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.94Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 602-00-6335$34.46 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $24.60 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.94Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 602-00-6335$24.60 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte



City of Bay City 503-377-2288

Vendor

InvoiceNumber Approved Amt Budgeted $Date YTD Balance

Council Approval Report

Page 32/10/2020  10:02am

(Council Approval Report)

Description Due Date Account NumberInvoice Amt Account Description

January 2020 $15.29 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.94Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 602-00-6335$15.29 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

$306.53

741 North Coast Door Co., 1303 Front Street, Tillamook, OR, 97141

23787 $40.00 $10,000.0002/09/20 $8,882.42Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 602-00-6305$40.00 Building Repairs & Maint

$40.00

523 North Coast Lawn, PO Box 1002, Tillamook, OR, 97141

70202 $355.00 $5,000.0002/09/20 $2,870.00Contracted Ground Maintenance 02/12/20 100-10-6311$355.00 Contracted Ground Maint

70202 $1,025.00 $12,300.0002/09/20 $6,150.00Contracted Ground Maintenance 02/12/20 100-50-6311$1,025.00 Contracted Ground Maint

70202 $150.00 $1,800.0002/09/20 $900.00Contracted Ground Maintenance 02/12/20 600-00-6311$150.00 Contracted Ground Maint

$1,530.00

562 Northstar Chemical, Inc., PO Box 35143 #6860, Seattle, WA, 98124-5143

160930 $1,179.20 $16,000.0002/09/20 $8,072.27Chemical/Lab Supplies 02/12/20 601-00-6135$1,179.20 Chemical/Lab Supplies

$1,179.20

631 Oregon Volunteer Fighters Association, 1284 Court Street NE, Salem, OR, 97301

20-2930 $112.50 $2,000.0002/09/20 $1,025.00Dues & Subscriptions 02/12/20 100-30-6405$112.50 Dues & Subscriptions

$112.50

617 Pinpoint Stitches and Ink, LLC, 4630 3rd St Suite C, Tillamook, OR, 97141

5069 $291.10 $3,000.0002/09/20 $1,108.81Other Miscellaneous Expenses 02/12/20 100-30-6990$291.10 Other Miscellaneous Exp

$291.10

106 Pollardwater.com, PO Box 417592, Boston, MA, 02241

0157506 $151.78 $10,000.0002/09/20 $7,524.80Utility System Repairs 02/12/20 600-00-6325$151.78 Utility System Repairs

0157506 $151.78 $40,000.0002/09/20 $36,009.03Utility System Repairs 02/12/20 601-00-6325$151.78 Utility System Repairs

$303.56

207 Portland Engineering Inc., 7675 High Banks Road #1, Central Point, OR, 97502

09294 $30.00 $3,500.0002/09/20 $1,908.47Telecommunications 02/12/20 600-00-6620$30.00 Telecommunications

09294 $30.00 $3,500.0002/09/20 $1,908.47Telecommunications 02/12/20 600-00-6620$30.00 Telecommunications

09294 $30.00 $4,200.0002/09/20 $2,850.59Telecommunications 02/12/20 601-00-6620$30.00 Telecommunications

09294 $30.00 $3,800.0002/09/20 $2,328.50Telecommunications 02/12/20 602-00-6620$30.00 Telecommunications

$120.00

778 Precision Wood Manufacturing, PO Box 3329, Bay City, OR, 97107

5017 $125.00 $6,500.0002/09/20 $3,557.52Mayor 02/12/20 100-90-6805$125.00 Mayor

$125.00

115 R Sanitary Service, PO Box 198, Garibaldi, OR, 97118

January 2020 $27.16 $10,000.0002/09/20 $9,630.77Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 100-10-6305$27.16 Building Repairs & Maint

January 2020 $27.16 $5,000.0002/09/20 $4,496.42Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 600-00-6305$27.16 Building Repairs & Maint

January 2020 $27.16 $10,000.0002/09/20 $5,000.46Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 601-00-6305$27.16 Building Repairs & Maint



City of Bay City 503-377-2288

Vendor

InvoiceNumber Approved Amt Budgeted $Date YTD Balance

Council Approval Report

Page 42/10/2020  10:02am

(Council Approval Report)

Description Due Date Account NumberInvoice Amt Account Description

January 2020 $27.17 $10,000.0002/09/20 $8,882.42Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 602-00-6305$27.17 Building Repairs & Maint

$108.65

114 Rosenberg Bldrs. Supply, 2 N. Main Avenue, Tillamook, OR, 97141

2001-253358 $23.98 $10,000.0002/09/20 $9,630.77Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 100-10-6305$23.98 Building Repairs & Maint

2001-253358 $5.94 $10,000.0002/09/20 $9,630.77Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 100-10-6305$5.94 Building Repairs & Maint

2001-253358 $19.99 $20,000.0002/09/20 $17,269.97Grounds Maintenance 02/12/20 100-50-6310$19.99 Grounds Maintenance

2001-253358 $229.97 $20,000.0002/09/20 $17,269.97Grounds Maintenance 02/12/20 100-50-6310$229.97 Grounds Maintenance

2001-253358 $34.99 $20,000.0002/09/20 $15,233.22Street Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 200-00-6315$34.99 Street Repairs & Mainten

2001-253358 $3.31 $5,000.0002/09/20 $4,496.42Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 600-00-6305$3.31 Building Repairs & Maint

2001-253358 $3.32 $10,000.0002/09/20 $5,000.46Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 601-00-6305$3.32 Building Repairs & Maint

2001-253358 $54.99 $10,000.0002/09/20 $5,000.46Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 601-00-6305$54.99 Building Repairs & Maint

2001-253358 $14.36 $12,500.0002/09/20 $5,342.71Chemical/Lab Supplies 02/12/20 602-00-6135$14.36 Chemical/Lab Supplies

2001-253358 $3.32 $10,000.0002/09/20 $8,882.42Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 602-00-6305$3.32 Building Repairs & Maint

2001-253358 $12.99 $50,000.0002/09/20 $48,861.64Utility System Repairs 02/12/20 602-00-6325$12.99 Utility System Repairs

$407.16

155 S & W Electric Works, Inc., 2960 N. Lafayette Ave., McMinnville, OR, 97128

3149 $13,998.00 $35,000.0002/09/20 $11,635.08Operational Equipment & Repairs 02/12/20 602-00-6345$13,998.00 Operational Equipment &

$13,998.00

779 Shapiro / Didway, 1204 SE Water Avenue, Portland, OR, 97214

19055.1 $3,989.04 $8,000.0002/09/20 $7,716.86Improvements Other Than Buildings 02/12/20 100-50-8300$3,989.04 Improvements Other Tha

19054.1 $3,978.88 $5,000.0002/09/20 $5,000.00Improvements Other Than Buildings 02/12/20 404-13-8300$3,978.88 Improvements Other Tha

$7,967.92

122 Sheldon Oil Company, 2801 Third Street, Tillamook, OR, 97141

48512 $46.68 $3,000.0002/09/20 $2,607.52Fuel/Lubes/Etc. 02/12/20 100-30-6140$46.68 Fuel/Lubes/Etc.

$46.68

229 State of Oregon, 255 Capitol Street NE, Suite 151, Salem, OR, 97310-1327

Cherry 2020 $40.00 $2,000.0002/09/20 $1,644.22Training 02/12/20 100-10-6410$40.00 Training

Pohs 2020 $40.00 $2,000.0002/09/20 $1,644.22Training 02/12/20 100-10-6410$40.00 Training

$80.00

315 Tillamook Complete Janitorial, 506 Williams Avenue, Tillamook, OR, 97141

1432 $210.00 $4,500.0002/09/20 $3,240.00Janitorial Services 02/12/20 100-10-6830$210.00 Janitorial Services

1432 $35.00 $600.0002/09/20 $373.33Janitorial Services 02/12/20 600-00-6830$35.00 Janitorial Services

1432 $35.00 $600.0002/09/20 $373.33Janitorial Services 02/12/20 601-00-6830$35.00 Janitorial Services

1432 $35.00 $600.0002/09/20 $373.34Janitorial Services 02/12/20 602-00-6830$35.00 Janitorial Services

$315.00

37 Tillamook Farmers Coop, 1920 Main Street North, Tillamook, OR, 97141

January 2020 $1.98 $20,000.0002/09/20 $17,269.97Grounds Maintenance 02/12/20 100-50-6310$1.98 Grounds Maintenance



City of Bay City 503-377-2288

Vendor

InvoiceNumber Approved Amt Budgeted $Date YTD Balance

Council Approval Report

Page 52/10/2020  10:02am

(Council Approval Report)

Description Due Date Account NumberInvoice Amt Account Description

January 2020 $15.26 $2,000.0002/09/20 ($1,468.72)Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 200-00-6335$15.26 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $15.74 $2,000.0002/09/20 ($1,468.72)Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 200-00-6335$15.74 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $2.24 $2,000.0002/09/20 ($1,468.72)Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 200-00-6335$2.24 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $40.12 $500.0002/09/20 $342.28Personal Protective Equipment 02/12/20 200-00-6350$40.12 Personal Protective Equi

January 2020 $12.43 $4,000.0002/09/20 $3,162.23Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 600-00-6125$12.43 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $11.39 $4,000.0002/09/20 $3,162.23Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 600-00-6125$11.39 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $5.32 $10,000.0002/09/20 $7,524.80Utility System Repairs 02/12/20 600-00-6325$5.32 Utility System Repairs

January 2020 $15.75 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.98Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 600-00-6335$15.75 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $2.25 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.98Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 600-00-6335$2.25 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $40.12 $750.0002/09/20 $414.32Personal Protective Equipment 02/12/20 600-00-6350$40.12 Personal Protective Equi

January 2020 $12.43 $5,000.0002/09/20 $4,097.90Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 601-00-6125$12.43 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $11.39 $5,000.0002/09/20 $4,097.90Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 601-00-6125$11.39 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $5.33 $40,000.0002/09/20 $36,009.03Utility System Repairs 02/12/20 601-00-6325$5.33 Utility System Repairs

January 2020 $2.25 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.92Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 601-00-6335$2.25 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $15.75 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.92Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 601-00-6335$15.75 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $40.12 $1,000.0002/09/20 $641.85Personal Protective Equipment 02/12/20 601-00-6350$40.12 Personal Protective Equi

January 2020 $11.40 $4,000.0002/09/20 $2,528.97Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 602-00-6125$11.40 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $12.42 $4,000.0002/09/20 $2,528.97Shop Supplies & Small Tools 02/12/20 602-00-6125$12.42 Shop Supplies & Small T

January 2020 $22.07 $4,000.0002/09/20 $2,855.78Fuel/Lubes/Etc. 02/12/20 602-00-6140$22.07 Fuel/Lubes/Etc.

January 2020 $21.59 $4,000.0002/09/20 $2,855.78Fuel/Lubes/Etc. 02/12/20 602-00-6140$21.59 Fuel/Lubes/Etc.

January 2020 $5.33 $50,000.0002/09/20 $48,861.64Utility System Repairs 02/12/20 602-00-6325$5.33 Utility System Repairs

January 2020 $2.25 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.94Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 602-00-6335$2.25 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $15.74 $5,000.0002/09/20 $1,472.94Vehicle Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 602-00-6335$15.74 Vehicle Repairs & Mainte

January 2020 $40.12 $1,000.0002/09/20 $378.64Personal Protective Equipment 02/12/20 602-00-6350$40.12 Personal Protective Equi

$380.79

27 Tillamook PUD, PO Box 433, Tillamook, OR, 97141-0433

January 2020 $508.59 $5,500.0002/09/20 $4,091.31Electricity 02/12/20 100-10-6605$508.59 Electricity

January 2020 $399.53 $4,200.0002/09/20 $2,942.72Electricity 02/12/20 100-30-6605$399.53 Electricity

January 2020 $104.45 $1,700.0002/09/20 $418.24Electricity 02/12/20 100-50-6605$104.45 Electricity

January 2020 $830.77 $10,000.0002/09/20 $5,703.06Electricity 02/12/20 200-00-6605$830.77 Electricity

January 2020 $68.63 $750.0002/09/20 $516.42Electricity 02/12/20 600-00-6605$68.63 Electricity

January 2020 $2,204.90 $26,000.0002/09/20 $14,365.28Electricity 02/12/20 601-00-6605$2,204.90 Electricity

January 2020 $2,862.69 $30,000.0002/09/20 $17,610.11Electricity 02/12/20 602-00-6605$2,862.69 Electricity

$6,979.56

128 Tillamook Sporting Goods, 2207 Main Ave. N Suite B, Tillamook, OR, 97141

10012494 $21.99 $10,000.0002/09/20 $9,630.77Building Repairs & Maintenance 02/12/20 100-10-6305$21.99 Building Repairs & Maint

$21.99

143 USTI Inc., PO Box 744850, Atlanta, GA, 30374-4850

268086 $54.00 $6,000.0002/09/20 $3,752.73Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 100-10-6105$54.00 Office Supplies & Equipm



City of Bay City 503-377-2288

Vendor

InvoiceNumber Approved Amt Budgeted $Date YTD Balance

Council Approval Report

Page 62/10/2020  10:02am

(Council Approval Report)

Description Due Date Account NumberInvoice Amt Account Description

268086 $54.00 $10,000.0002/09/20 $4,398.23Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 100-30-6105$54.00 Office Supplies & Equipm

268086 $54.00 $3,250.0002/09/20 $1,544.41Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 600-00-6105$54.00 Office Supplies & Equipm

268086 $54.00 $2,000.0002/09/20 $1,349.08Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 601-00-6105$54.00 Office Supplies & Equipm

268086 $54.00 $3,500.0002/09/20 $1,776.54Office Supplies & Equipment 02/12/20 602-00-6105$54.00 Office Supplies & Equipm

$270.00

215 Vanir Broadband, Inc., 2203 Main Avenue N, Suite J, Tillamook, OR, 97141

22198 $16.65 $7,500.0002/09/20 $2,823.58Computers/Software/Services 02/12/20 600-00-6860$16.65 Computers/Software/Ser

22198 $16.65 $5,000.0002/09/20 $3,472.42Computers/Software/Services 02/12/20 601-00-6860$16.65 Computers/Software/Ser

22198 $16.65 $5,000.0002/09/20 $2,390.86Computers/Software/Services 02/12/20 602-00-6860$16.65 Computers/Software/Ser

$49.95

780 William Cooper, PO Box 186, Garibaldi, OR, 97118

Refund $37.82 $1,000.0002/09/20 $824.30Deposit Refunds 02/12/20 600-00-6905$37.82 Deposit Refunds

Refund $56.52 $1,500.0002/09/20 $1,392.75Deposit Refunds 02/12/20 602-00-6905$56.52 Deposit Refunds

$94.34

Total Bills To Pay: $42,731.81







BAY CITY RESOLUTION 20-06 

 

 

CITY OF BAY CITY 

RESOLUTION 20-06 

 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR BUDGET APPROPRIATION  

CHANGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 

 

 

 WHEREAS the City of Bay City has experienced higher than expected operational 

equipment & repairs fees during the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year due to unexpected needed repairs to an 

essential Fire Engine than has arisen, and    

 

 WHEREAS ORS 294.463(2) allows contingency appropriations transfers not to exceed 

15 percent of the total fund to be made without a supplemental budget for an occurrence or 

condition which had not been ascertained at the time of the preparation of a budget for this 

current year, which requires a change in financial planning, and 

 

 WHEREAS the City of Bay City has Contingency Funds within the Bay City General 

Fund to pay for additional Operational Equipment & Repairs expenses.                                   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Bay City 

hereby adopts appropriation changes for the 2019-20 FY budget approved by the City Council on 

February 11, 2020, which is now on file in the office of the City Recorder. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the amounts for the purposes shown below are 

hereby appropriated. 

 

 BAY CITY GENERAL FUND 

 

 Expenditures / Materials & Services 

      Budgeted Change   New Amount  

 Operational Equipment & Repairs $ 16,000  +$6,000     $22,000 

    (100-30-6345) 

 

Contingencies  (100-30-9800) $ 20,452           -$6,000    $14,452      

 

ADOPTED by the City Council this 11th day of February, 2020 and approved by the Mayor of 

Bay City this 11th day of February, 2020. 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

       Christopher Kruebbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Chance Steffey, P.E.,  

City Manager/Public Works Director 



City of Bay City Resolution No. 20-07 

CITY OF BAY CITY 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-07 

 

 

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING UNANTICIPATED REVENUE FOR THE BAY CITY 

SEWER FUND AND MAKING APPROPRATIONS. 

 

WHEREAS the City of Bay City has received revenue and expenditures which could not have been 

foreseen when the original budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020 

was prepared and adopted; 

 

WHEREAS the City received additional revenue by assessing fines and high strength surcharges for code 

enforcement; and ORS 294.338(3) allows for the appropriations of unforeseen pressing necessity for an 

expenditure; 

 

AND WHEREAS the City could not have foreseen the additional revenue from the fines and high 

strength surcharges and unforeseen pressing necessity for expenditures when preparing for and adopting 

the budget for fiscal year ending June 20, 2020. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Bay City recognizing the 

additional revenue and appropriates the funds as follows: 

 

SEWER FUND 

 

RESOURCES    Budgeted  Change           New Amount 

Code Enforcement Fines  $  0   +$ 75,000             $ 75,000  

 (602-00-4850) 

 

EXPENDITURES   Budgeted  Change           New Amount 

Full-Time Employee   $177,300    +$20,000              $197,300  

(602-00-5105) 

Chemical /Lab Supplies   $ 12,500  +$10,000  $ 22,500  

(602-006135) 

Engineering Fees   $ 10,000  +$ 5,000  $ 15,000 

(602-00-6215) 

Operational Equipment & Repairs $ 35,000  +$35,000  $ 70,000  

(602-00-6345) 

Electricity    $ 30,000  +$ 5,000  $ 35,000 

(602-00-6605) 

 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Bay City and APPROVED by the Mayor of Bay City this 

11th day of February 2020. 

 

      

             

                       __________________________ 

         Christopher Kruebbe, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Chance Steffey, City Manager 



Memorandum 

 

To: Mayor Kruebbe and Bay City Council 

From: Debbie Pohs, TLT Committee Secretary 

Date: 2/7/2020 

Re: Transient Lodging Tax Advisory Committee Recommendations 

The Transient Lodging Tax Advisory Committee met on January 8 , January 15, 

and January 29, 2020 to go over and review 4 grant applications.  

 

The committee’s recommendations are as follows:  

 

Al Griffin Memorial Park – Master Plan Phase 1  

Project Total – $7606.00 

Amount Requested – $5704.50 - APPROVE 

 

Watt Family Park – Playground & Day Use Area – Phase 1 

Project Total – $9714.00 

Amount Requested – $7285.50 - APPROVE 

 

      2020 Pearl and Oyster Music Festival  

      Project Total - $16975.00 

      Amount Requested – $6500.00 - APPROVE 

 

Sheltered Nook on Tillamook Bay 

Project Total - $19310.00 

Amount Requested - $14482.50   

After review of eligible expenses the Advisory Committee suggested the 

following revisions. 

Project Total - $15910.00 

Amount Requested - $11932.50 

The advisory committee left the grant amount to the discretion of the council. 

 

            

 

 

























































































































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor's Proposed Changes to the Bay City Charter: 

 

These proposals are intended to be delivered as four separate changes to the Charter and be on 

the May Ballot: 

1. Term Limits - 2  four year terms for each Council Member AND 4 two year terms for 

Mayor OR 2 four year terms for Mayor.  Councilors or Mayor sit out for minimum of two 

years before running for Office or being appointed to vacated positions.  All other 

Charter language to remain unchanged. 

2. Two wards - North and South Bay City, the ridge being the dividing line or it could be by 

population, not sure on the election laws on that.  Two Councilors from each ward OR 

Three Councilors from each ward.  No more “at large” Council members.  All other 

Charter language to remain unchanged. 

3. At Large Mayor is granted full voting rights AND a four year term.  The Council retains 

Executive privileges, no any one Council member can direct the City Manager or 

Recorder with the exception of the Mayor when proposing and approving the agenda for 

meetings of the Council.  All other Charter language to remain unchanged. 

4. Fair and reasonable stipends for the Mayor and Council members not to exceed stipends 

of the highest ranking Officers of the Fire Department. 

This is, of course a rough draft. It would need to be drafted by the City Attorney in compliance 

with ORS, OAR, and State Laws.  

 

 


